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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(Z7 Restated)
(57 Note 2.2)
BT BT JBEFT BT BEFT
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000
E¥ Results
BREI AR F Profit before taxation 164,487 176,834 251,365 321,953 858,802
FEMT Income tax expense (560) (3,946) (10,022) (21,370) (32,062)
RQRERBEA  Profitfor the year attributable to
EEFERR equity holders of the Company 163,927 172,888 241,343 300,583 826,740
BEET T
HKS Thousand
900,000 |- St R R e = o — = == — — — — — R — 826,740
800,000 2
700,000 :
600,000 -
500,000 i
400,000 .
300,000 .
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100,000 4
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2008 2009
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
(ZE71] Restated)
(5Z Note 2.2)
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
EEFE Net assets
% MERZE  Property, plant and equipment 24,407 22,892 21,644 20,454 19,445
REME Investment properties 86,713 98,281 95,695 122,456 136,193
H[E B Jointly controlled entities 1,143,062 1,367,863 1,649,907 1,963,657 64,901
N Associates 36,841 44,735 11,654 13,879 2,237,071
AHEESRBEE  Available-for-sale financial assets 576,576 656,640 488313 477,114 622,094
BRREE Reinsurance assets 1,959 1903 1,665 3,268 2,523
ELFEHEE Deferred income tax assets 673 658 475 428 419
ROEE Current assets 639,289 841,464 761,696 791440 | 1,166,764
nERE Current liabilities (182,359) (343,979) (330,854) (337,868) (392,133)
RITERX Bank borrowings (53,946) (113,551) — — =
1%5@4.\%@ Insurance contracts (17,832) (18,306) (15,262) (14,069) (14,554)
ELEFREHaE Deferred income tax liabilities (7,201) (10,570) (18,211) (33,844) (37,972)
EERE Net assets 2,248,182 2,548,030 2,666,722 3,006,915 3,804,751
BRAE Total equity
i Share capital 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429
HibEEE Other reserves 1,562,840 1,728,894 1,761,357 1930407 | 1,927,830
REEA Retained profits
BURAR & Proposed dividend 13,783 13,783 13,783 18,377 41,348
CHfth y Others 212,130 345,924 432,153 598,702 1,307,833
RABZERE Amount recognised in other
BRRNEZE  comprehensiveincomeand
2HERELE accumulated in equity
MEERBANFIE  relating to assets held for sale — — — — 68,311
AQEEHIFEA  Total equity attributable to equity
EihERER holders of the Company 2,248,182 2,548,030 2,666,722 3,006,915 3,804,751
BT
HKS$ Thousand
4,000,000 [ == == === e o 3,804,751
3500,000 | — GRS
3,000,000 | — — — = R e L
2,548,030
2,500,000 | 2248180 T
2,000,000 | -
1,500,000 | -
1,000,000 | -
500,000 | -
0

2008

2009

2010

2011
(&% Restated)

2012
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Mr Weng Ruo Tong (chaiman

In 2012, the global economy was volatile and unstable. The pace
of economic recovery in the United States remained tardy while
Europe continued to face the issue of sovereign debt crisis. The
situation of the overall economy appeared sluggish and fragile.
On the other hand, the emerging economies had to cope with
the threat of economic downturn. In particular, the pace of
economic growth in Mainland China continued to slow down.

OPERATING RESULTS

In 2012, the Group reported an audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of HK$826.74 million, an increase
of 175% from HK$300.58 million in last year. Basic earnings per
share amounted to 179.95 HK cents.
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OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

During the year, Xiamen International Bank has achieved a
rather rapid growth in its results. The share of results of Xiamen
International Bank by the Group has increased by HK$161.77
million as compared to that of last year. At the same time, the
completion of the Group's disposal of its 5% equity interest in
Xiamen International Bank during the year has generated a gain
after tax of HK$108.14 million. Further, the completion of two
tranches of the Share Issue by Xiamen International Bank during
the year has resulted in the dilution of the Company’s interest
from 31.75% to approximately 18.7739%, thereby posting a gain
on dilution in the aggregate of HK$305.27 million for the Group.
Benefiting from the above, the Group reported a significant
increase in the audited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of HK$526.16 million as compared to that of last year.

DIVIDEND

In light of the satisfactory performance of the Group and
the one-off gain on disposal of 5% equity interest in Xiamen
International Bank and dilution of equity interest in Xiamen
International Bank during the year, the Directors have resolved
to recommend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held on 7 June 2013 the payment of a special
dividend of 5 HK cents per share totaling HK$22,971,433 (2011:
Nil) in addition to the payment of a final dividend of 4 HK cents
per share totaling HK$18,377,146 (2011: 4 HK cents per share
totaling HK$18,377,146) for the year ended 31 December 2012.
The proposed dividend, if approved, will be paid on or before 2
August 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Banking Business

The Group, through its interest in Xiamen International Bank,
conducts banking business in Mainland China and Macao. For
the year 2012, the Group’s banking business reported an audited
profit after tax of HK$839.25 million, an increase of 217.8% as
compared to HK$264.08 million of last year. Excluding the one-
off gain on disposal of 5% equity interest in Xiamen International
Bank and dilution of equity interest in Xiamen International Bank
totaling HK$413.4 million, the Group reported an audited profit
after tax of HK$425.85 million, an increase of 61.3% as compared
to that of last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Banking Business (Continued)

2012 is a significantly meaningful year for Xiamen International
Bank. With the formal approval granted by the China Banking
Regulatory Commission to Xiamen International Bank for its
Share Issue proposal, Xiamen International Bank has successfully
implemented the first tranche of the Share Issue as well as
convening the founding meeting when it turned into a joint
stock limited company. It has also subsequently implemented
two tranches of the Share Issue following its change into a share
limited company.

During the year under review, the economic growth in Mainland
China remained sluggish. In order to avoid the risk of economic
hard landing, the Central Government implemented economic
policy to stable growth. As a result, the national economy of
Mainland China has shown signs of recovery gradually in the
second half. Despite the tough macroeconomic environment
challenges, Xiamen International Bank has, driven by the
favourable factor of having successfully implemented the Share
Issue, timely seized market opportunities. Through the new
products and new business market, Xiamen International Bank
attained favourable results once again with its total assets boosted
by approximately RMB101.47 billion, crossing the RMB200 billion
mark, as compared to those at the end of last year.

Xiamen International Bank registered an audited consolidated
net profit prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting
Standards of RMB1,002.16 million in 2012, 69.8% higher than
that of RMB590.33 million reported in last year.

As at the end of 2012, the total assets of Xiamen International
Bank grew by approximately 96.5% to RMB206.56 billion,
as compared to those at the end of last year. Gross loans to
customers rose by approximately 24.6% to RMB66.14 billion
and total deposits from customers up approximately 33.6% to
RMB96.29 billion, as compared to the respective balances at the
end of last year. Given the effect from the product innovation,
the net fee and commission income of Xiamen International
Bank rose by approximately 38.6% to RMBO0.35 billion whereas
the investment income surged significantly by approximately
110.8% as compared to those of last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Banking Business (Continued)

With the economy regaining growth momentum in the second
half of 2012, it is expected that the risk of a hard landing in
Mainland China will considerably diminish in 2013. However,
as downside risks still exist in the global economy, the Central
Government will launch policies to ensure that the economy of
Mainland China will maintain steady growth. Amid such difficult
economic situation, Xiamen International Bank will grasp the
opportunities arising from the Share Issue, to expand its business
and create new retail business. It will also actively expand the
intermediary business and cultivate financial markets business,
so as to build a multi-polar growth pattern of business with a
view to continuing its efforts to provide sustainable value for its
shareholders.

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“MXIC"), the Group's
wholly-owned subsidiary, registered an audited profit after tax
of HK$2.46 million in 2012, a decrease of 66.6% from HK$7.37
million in last year. Such result was due mainly to the worsening
of underwriting profit as a result of the provision of additional
claims reserve towards certain past year’s claims cases. The
management team of MXIC will render more efforts on
improving the underwriting profit at an aim to provide a more
favourable return to the shareholders.

Property Development and Investment

The property development and investment business of the
Group mainly comprises the real estate development business
and the leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland
China. In 2012, the property development and investment
business reported an audited loss after tax of HK$14.41 million,
as compared with an audited profit after tax of HK$24.29 million
in2011.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development and Investment (Continued)

The real estate development in Suzhou, Mainland China (the
“Suzhou Project”) undertaken by Minxin (Suzhou) Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Minxin Suzhou”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, has satisfied the conditions for delivery
in the second half of 2011. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately
RMB21.55 million with contracted construction area of
approximately 2,065 square meters. For last year, the contracted
sales were approximately RMB130.96 million with contracted
construction area of approximately 13,138 square meters.

In 2012, Minxin Suzhou has recognised a sales revenue of
approximately RMB30.12 million and recorded an audited loss
after tax of RMB16.26 million, as compared with a sales revenue
of approximately RMB187.89 million and an audited profit after
tax of RMB11.16 million in last year.

The persistent control policies in the property market imposed
by the Central Government and uncertain economic outlook in
Mainland China have created a “wait-and-see” mentality among
the potential mid-end to high-end property purchasers. The
sales performance of Minxin Suzhou has been adversely affected.
Hence, the shareholders of the Company approved the disposal
of 100% equity interest in Minxin Suzhou to an independent third
party at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28 February
2013. This transaction provides the Group with an opportunity
to exit the real estate market of Suzhou and realise the Suzhou
project in a faster way. The disposal can also generate cash inflow
to the Group thereby increasing its working capital.

A steady and recurrent rental income as well as capital
appreciation were generated by the Group’s investment
properties and car parks in Fuzhou, Fujian Province (the “Fuzhou
Property”). The Fuzhou Property recorded a rental income of
RMB3.91 million in 2012, up 17.1% as compared with RMB3.34
million reported in 2011. At 31 December 2012, the fair value of
the Fuzhou Property was RMB71.71 million, 8.6% higher than
the fair value of RMB66.01 million at the end of 2011. The Group
recognised a fair value gain of HK$7.74 million and a fair value
gain after deferred tax of HK$2.63 million in 2012, as compared
to a fair value gain of HK$23.28 million and a fair value gain after
deferred tax of HK$8.32 million in 2011.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng Shares”)

At the end of 2012, the Shanghai Composite Index rose slightly
as compared to that at the end of 2011. The closing bid price
of Huaneng’s A-share climbed from RMB5.37 per share at 31
December 2011 to RMB7.15 per share at 31 December 2012.
The fair value of the Group’s investment in Huaneng Shares
measured with reference to the closing bid price of Huaneng’s
A-share increased to approximately HK$622.09 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB500.16 million). The gain of
approximately HK$161.45 million arising from the change in
its fair value (2011: fair value loss of approximately HK$11.2
million) was recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve.

Being classified as a long term available-for-sale financial asset of
the Group, Huaneng Shares generate a steady dividend income
to the Group. During the year, Huaneng paid a final dividend
for 2011 of RMBO0.05 per share. The Group recorded a dividend
income of HK$4.39 million, as compared to the final dividend
payment for 2010 of RMBO0.2 per share totaling HK$17.23 million
received by the Group in 2011.

Huaneng recently announced its 2012 annual results under the
PRC Accounting Standards. Its operating revenue has increased
by 0.4% as compared to that of last year, and its operating
expenses were under effective control due to reduced coal price.
Its net profit attributable to equity holders have increased by
362.7% to RMB5.9 billion with earnings per share of RMB0.42 in
2012 as compared to RMB0.09 per share in last year, an increase
of RMBO0.33 per share.

During the year, the Group has disposed of approximately 2.05
million Huaneng Shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, which
represents approximately 2.8% of the Group's shareholding,
generating a disposal gain after tax of approximately HK$10.68
million. The Group is now in the process of applying for the
grant of the approval of repatriation of funds in Mainland China.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Net Asset Value per Share

The Group persists in investing prudently as usual and strives
to maintain a healthy financial position. Based on 459,428,656
shares in issue (2011: 459,428,656 shares), the net asset value per
share was HK$8.28 (2011: HK$6.54) at 31 December 2012.

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Current Ratio

At 31 December 2012, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$444.66 million (2011: HK$385.78 million) and the ratio of
total liabilities to total equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company was 0.12 (2011: 0.13). At 31 December 2012,
the current assets and current liabilities of the Group were
HK$618.98 million (2011: HK$791.44 million) and HK$182.78
million (2011: HK$337.87 million) respectively with a current
ratio of 3.4 (2011: 2.3).

Borrowings and Charged Assets

At 31 December 2012, the Group had outstanding bank loans
principal of HK$50 million (2011: HK$50 million) to be repaid
within one year. The outstanding bank loans of the Group are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and subject to floating
interest rates. The Group had undrawn overdraft facility of
HKS$10 million at 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2012, the above bank loans were secured by the
Group's property with a book value of approximately HK$11.22
million (2011: approximately HK$11.68 million).

At 31 December 2012, the Group had entrusted bank loan
principal from Fujian Investment & Development Group Co.,
Ltd, a substantial shareholder of the Company, of RMB90 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$111.94 million) with a term to
be expired on 24 June 2013 (2011: RMB90 million, equivalent
to approximately HK$111.06 million, with a term to be expired
on 24 June 2012). The entrusted bank loan was unsecured and
borne interest at 10% per annum.

Save for the above, the other assets of the Group were not
pledged at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

11



12

B{E&E AR 2 8 Mix Xin Holdings Limited

E T e
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

S5 1 et ()
AR

RZE——"HF+_-_A=+—H AEBE
AEBELR(BEERINEEZE)NES
EREREKTE - RHE43%R( T ——F:
5.4%) o

Bk

AEEBZBETERMEERMISFEZF
B -RZZE——F+-_A=+—H ' &&E
B RITF R BEABE183188 (=&
——4F 1 BH20,719870) - HPBEFERE
61.6% °© ARETF G 34% M H b & 817 3%
H4.4% (=T ——F : BEFHRIH725% © A
RUETF RN 24.4% R EMEEFHIE3.1%) °

RZE——F+-_A=+—8 FEHAL—
XEEZEWNBRARFANE e MRITET
PWARE12128T(ZEHE,1,50887T)
EEMHOEARBELE  UWRGRETBKR
KRN B BEARBIEHENEE -

BEEERBEERRZET  SHEEW
—RMBRARFEE G RET L RB 1,600
B ZE——F : F¥16008L)2E®
BARITER - LM B R B I8 4548
740 BT (SENEE7288L)(ZF——
F 4R e04E L SEHLY B 58658
TL) Z SRIT1F RATF & B PR BUE B) B 1l &
B2 EFIRE -

BEAEE -—RWNBARABEEFE AL
VENETERDGERBERMME TR
TEMER R_T——F+_-_A=+—
B ZMBRARGTEHRHOARK1328L(£E
HEE164BTT)(ZTE——F : HARM 306
B SENBEIBET)NEERNETIR
TERP ERRZRUYEERBEHRIZEE
HHREL BFHARESRABEEVEERE
EES M Y siEE IR T A IR TRER -

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2012, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings and advances divided by total net assets) still
maintained at a relatively low level and was only 4.3% (2011:
5.4%).

Cash Position

The Group's bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. At 31 December 2012, the total bank deposits of
the Group amounted to HK$183.18 million (2011: HK$207.19
million) of which 61.6% were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, 34% in Renminbi and 4.4% in other currencies (2011:
72.5% in Hong Kong Dollars, 24.4% in Renminbi and 3.1% in
other currencies).

At 31 December 2012, the cash and bank balances of
approximately RMB12.12 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$15.08 million) held by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
in Mainland China had been reclassified as held for sale and
included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
assets classified as held for sale.

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary maintains
at all times a portion of its funds, being not less than HK$16
million (2011: HK$16 million), in bank deposits. That subsidiary
has also maintained a bank deposit of approximately MOP7.49
million (equivalent to approximately HK$7.28 million) (2011:
approximately MOP6.04 million, equivalent to approximately
HK$5.86 million) for fulfilling certain requirements under the
Macao Insurance Ordinance.

According to the guarantees provided by a subsidiary of the
Group in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
to certain purchasers of that subsidiary’s properties in Mainland
China, at 31 December 2012, that subsidiary has placed deposits
of approximately RMB1.32 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$1.64 million) (2011: approximately RMB3.06 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$3.78 million) at designated
bank accounts for potential default in payment of mortgage
loans advanced to those property purchasers. Such deposits will
only be released when those property purchasers obtain the
“property title certificate” which is then pledged to the relevant
banks.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao, the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises from
fluctuations in the Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi exchange
rates. As the Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi are both under
managed floating systems, the Group, after reviewing its existing
exposure, did not enter into any derivative contracts aimed at
minimising exchange rate risks during the year. However, the
Group will monitor foreign currency exposure and consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Commitments

At 31 December 2012, the Group's capital commitments relating
to property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$0.21 million (2011: approximately HK$0.63 million).

Contingent Liabilities

A subsidiary of the Group provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks and financial
institutions to certain purchasers of that subsidiary’s properties
in Mainland China. The maximum guarantees given to those
banks and financial institutions amounted to RMB46.21 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$57.48 million) at 31 December
2012 (2011: RMB102.49 million, equivalent to approximately
HK$126.47 million).

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by those purchasers, that subsidiary is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interest and penalty owed by those
defaulted purchasers to the relevant banks and financial
institutions, and that subsidiary is entitled to take over the legal
title and possession of the related properties. The guarantee
period starts from the date of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and ends when the property purchaser obtains the
“property title certificate” which is then pledged to the relevant
banks and financial institutions. The Group considers that the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalty in case of default in
payments and therefore no provision has been made for those
guarantees.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 62 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience. The Group also provides other benefits to the
employees including retirement benefits and medical scheme.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward into 2013, the global economy will remain
volatile. The economy of the United States has shown signs of
gradual pick-up while the European economy will stay sluggish.
Yet, the chance of an outbreak of the sovereign debt crisis is
less likely. With the economy regaining growth momentum
in the second half of 2012, it is expected that the risk of a hard
landing in Mainland China will significantly diminish. However,
as there are still many uncertainties in the global economic
environment, the economy of Mainland China will be affected
by such uncertainties. Hence, it is believed that the Central
Government will speed up the adjustment of policies to ensure
stable long-term growth. It will also encourage consumption
growth, depress real estate market speculation and investment
demand in order to lay down a good foundation for the future
development of urbanisation.

As an investment-based company, the Group will continue to
maintain a prudent and stable investment strategy. It will steadily
strengthen its corporate governance and management capacity,
enhance the profitability of its existing assets and actively cope
with market challenges. With its sound financial position, the
Group will seek investment opportunities with steady return
and enhance the ability of sustainable development in order to
generate sustainable value for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to our friends for their support, and
to the management and all our staff for their dedicated services
and contribution.

WENG RUO TONG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Weng Ruo Tong, aged 58, has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since April 2009, and served
as Vice Chairman of the Company since then until 30 June
2009. He has been subsequently re-designated as Chairman of
the Company since 1 July 2009. He is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Weng is a university
graduate and has been engaged in industrial investment,
infrastructure construction and development, capital and
corporate management for a substantial period of time. He has
extensive experience in investments, financing, infrastructure
construction and development, and corporate management.
He had previously assumed the positions of Vice Director of the
Forestry Department of Fujian Province, General Manager of
Fujian Forestry Company, General Manager of Fujian Investment
& Development Corporation. He is currently the Chairman
of both Xiamen International Bank and Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Mr Peng Jin Guang, aged 50, has been appointed as an
Executive Director and Vice Chairman of the Company since June
2012. Mr Peng is a university graduate and holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Economics. He is a Senior Accountant and Senior
Lecturer in Mainland China. He has spent a substantial period of
time in corporate management and has extensive experience in
corporate, financial and capital management. He has previously
assumed the positions of Director of the Teaching and Research
Section and Chief of the Academic Affairs Office of Fujian Ningde
Fianace and Economics School, Director of Accounting Center,
Deputy Chief Accountant, Assistant General Manager and Chief
Accountant of Fujian Investment & Development Corporation,
and Financial Controller of CNOOC Fujian Natural Gas Co., Ltd.
He is currently the General Manager of Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd., and a Director and the Chairman
of Vigour Fine Company Limited, both of which are substantial
shareholders of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr Zhu Xue Lun, aged 61, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2003. Mr Zhu is a university
graduate and an Engineer in Mainland China. He has spent a long
time in corporate management and has extensive experience in
corporate management, property management, investment and
capital management. He has previously assumed the positions
of Director of Taining Light Industry Bureau in Fujian Province,
Head of Taining County, General Manager of Huafu Real Estate
Company in Fujian Province. He is currently a Vice President of
Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. and a Director
of Vigour Fine Company Limited, both of which are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Mr Li Jin Hua, aged 50, acted as a Non-executive Director of
the Company from April to 12 August 2009, and has been re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company following
his appointment as Deputy General Manager of the Company
on 13 August 2009. He has subsequently been appointed as the
General Manager of the Company since 16 June 2010. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr Li is a university graduate and holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration. He is a Senior Economist and Senior
Engineer in Mainland China, and has been engaged in industrial
investment, project development and corporate management
for a substantial period of time. He has extensive experience
in corporate management and investment, development and
construction. He has previously assumed the positions of Deputy
General Manager of Fujian Raw Materials United Development
Company, General Manager of Zhong Min Leasing Company,
General Manager of Fujian Hongfa Economic Development
Company, Deputy General Manager of CNOOC Fujian Gas
Power Co., Ltd., and Deputy General Manager of the Planning
and Development Department and General Manager of the Gas
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Corporation.
He is currently a director of Xiamen International Bank and also
the Chairman of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited and Fujian
Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. He is also a Director of both Vigour
Fine Company Limited and Samba Limited, both of which are
substantial shareholders of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Zhang Rong Hui, aged 54, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since June 2011. Mr Zhang is
an Engineer in Mainland China. He has extensive experience in
real estate development, construction, investment management
and corporate management. He has previously assumed the
positions of General Manager of the Zhangzhou Branch of
Zhong Min C&D Company, General Manager of Zhong Min
C&D Property Co., Ltd., General Manager of Zhong Min C&D
Decoration Company, Deputy General Manager of Xiamen
Zhong Min Company and of Xiamen Zhong Min Ju Hao Real
Estate Company, and General Manager and Chairman of Fujian
Zhi He Investment Co., Ltd. He is currently a Director and General
Manager of Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ip Kai Ming, aged 61, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 1998. He is
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is currently an Executive Director and General
Manager of Luso International Banking Limited in Macao, and
a Vice President of Xiamen International Bank. He is a fellow
member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and has over 30 years’
extensive experience in banking and finance. He is also a Director
of the Macao Chamber of Commerce, the Vice Chairman of the
Executive Board of the Macao Institute of Financial Services and
a Vice Chairman of the Macao Chinese Enterprises Association.
Mr Ip has a Master of Science Degree in Corporate Governance
and Directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, aged 72, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 1999. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was a partner
of an international firm of accountants with which he practised
for over 20 years. He is currently a non-executive director to a
number of Hong Kong listed companies.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr So Hop Shing, aged 65, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 2004. He is a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. He is a practising solicitor and senior partner
of Tang and So, Solicitors and Notaries. Mr So is the holder of
Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of London, Master
of Laws Degree from the City University of Hong Kong and The
People’s University of China, and Doctor of Laws Degree from
Peking University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Cai Xiao Hong, aged 58, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 1995. She holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the University of California, Los
Angeles and has previously worked for various large companies.
She has over 20 years’ extensive experience in financial and
investment management. She is currently a Director of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited.

Mr Lin Zhu Fu, aged 49, joined the Company as Deputy General
Manager in September 2006. Mr Lin graduated from the Fujian
College of Engineering in Architecture and Beijing Jiaotong
University in Law. He is an Engineer and Senior Corporate
Controller in Mainland China and has over 25 years’ extensive
experience in real estate development, construction, investment
management and corporate management.

Mr Chen Sheng Jie, aged 46, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in August 2010. Mr Chen graduated from
Tongji University in Industrial Management Engineering in
Economic Management Department. He is an Engineer in
Mainland China and has worked and studied at Mercedes-Benz
Company in Germany. He has extensive experience in corporate
development research, investments evaluation, real estate
and other assets valuation. He is currently a Director of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited and is also a Director of Samba
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr Chan Kwong Yu, aged 42, joined the Company in April 2000.
He was appointed as the Deputy Financial Controller of the
Company in July 2004 and was promoted to Financial Controller
in January 2008. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in
Accounting, and is a Certified Public Accountant and a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before
joining the Company, he has worked for various listed companies
in Hong Kong. He has 15 years of extensive experience in
accounting and financial management. He is currently a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company, the
Chief Representative of the Fuzhou Representative Office of the
Company, and also a Director of Fujian Minxin Investments Co.,
Ltd.

Mr Yu Rui Hui, aged 47, joined the Company in August 2009
and was appointed as Group Chief Auditor of the Company in
November 2010. Mr Yu has a Bachelor of Economics Degree
from The People’s University of China, and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the Xiamen University. He is a
Senior Accountant in Mainland China and has over 23 years’
extensive experience in financial management, investment
management and corporate management.

Mr Chan Kwok Kwong, aged 54, joined Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited (“MXIC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in 1999 and has subsequently been appointed as
Chief Executive and Director of MXIC since October 1999 and
September 2003 respectively. He holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a Master’s Degree in Engineering (Civil & Structural
Engineering) from the Sheffield University of England. He has
acquired extensive experience from various multi-national
insurance and reinsurance companies for over 25 years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance. The Company has applied the principles set out in
the former Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective
until 31 March 2012) and the new Corporate Governance Code
(effective from 1 April 2012) (both, the “CG Code”) as contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of the Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31
December 2012, except for the following deviations:

CG Code A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The Non-
executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but they are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with the
Company'’s Articles of Association.

CG Code A.6.7 provides that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings. Due to an overseas commitment, an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 12 June
2012.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of eight
Directors, with four Executive Directors, one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
three Independent Non-executive Directors collectively possess
a wide range of expertise on accounting, financial management
and legal areas. The Directors’ biographical information is set
out on pages 15 to 18.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules to the Company. The Company is of the view
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The Board determines the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance. It also decides on matters such as annual budgets
and business plans, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, and dividend and accounting policies.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to senior management
under the supervision of the General Manager and the Executive
Committee of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance to
facilitate fullest possible attendance. Each Director is invited
to present any businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose
at such meetings. All Directors have access to appropriate
business documents and information about the Company on
a timely basis. The Board and each Director has separate and
independent access to senior management of the Company.
Directors may choose to take independent professional advice at
the Company’s expenses, if necessary. Drafts and final versions
of minutes are circulated to all the Directors for comments.
During the year, five Board meetings and the annual general
meeting for the year 2012 were held. The individual attendance
of each Director is set out below:

HE " BIEBRE
Number of
Meetings attended/held
IR
g BEXE
Annual
General
Board Meeting
HITES Executive Directors
SERKE (FE) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 3/5 1/1
TRt (BIFE) Mr Wang Hui Jin (Vice Chairman) 0/2 0/1
(R=ZF—=—FXH+/NHEHF) (Resigned on 18 June 2012)
T IE (BIEE) Mr Peng Jin Guang (Vice-Chairman) 3/3 0/1
(R=ZF—=—FXNAF+NHZF) (Appointed on 18 June 2012)
REMELE Mr Zhu Xue Lun 3/5 0/1
IRIE LA (ABAEEE) Mr Li Jin Hua (General Manager) 5/5 1/1
FHITESE Non-executive Director
SREIB A Mr Zhang Rong Hui 5/5 1/1
BYEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
s EMEE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 4/5 0/1
(BEZEEE/E) (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
ERALE Mr Ip Kai Ming 3/5 1/1
(FiNZEEE/E) (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
et Mr So Hop Shing 5/5 1/1
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than that required by the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they complied with the
code of conduct for transactions in the Company’s securities
throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

During the year under review, the Company has arranged for
the Directors a seminar covering the topics concerning listed
company’s obligations to disclose inside information and
connected transactions.

The training record of each existing Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2012 is summarised below:

EIER
Types
of Training
HITES Executive Directors
SERLE (FEF) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) A B
ek (B1EE) Mr Peng Jin Guang (Vice Chairman) A B
KEMWEE Mr Zhu Xue Lun A, B
FRERE Mr Li Jin Hua A, B
FHITEE Non-executive Director
SRERIBS A Mr Zhang Rong Hui A, B
BYEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAALAE Mr Ip Kai Ming A, B
S BB AE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To A B
At Mr So Hop Shing A B

A HEFRSERKENE

Attending seminars and/or briefing sessions

B RMEAWER ZE RMRE UREERENAETSEH

Reading materials relating to management, legal, finance and investment and directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and
the existing General Manager (acting in the capacity of Chief
Executive) of the Company are held by separate individuals with
a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties regarding
management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of the Group’s business. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure that
the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman
ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has
delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each
Board meeting to the General Manager. Senior management is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group under
the leadership of the General Manager of the Company. The
General Manager, working with the Executive Committee and
supported by other management, is responsible for managing
the businesses of the Group, including implementation of
strategies adopted by the Board and assuming full accountability
to the Board for the operations of the Group.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors without
the presence of Executive Directors in 2012.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term as required by Code Provision A.4.1;
but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive Directors
of the Board, namely Mr Weng Ruo Tong, Mr Peng Jin Guang and
Mr Zhu Xue Lun. These members meet frequently as and when
necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr Sze Robert Tsai To who
was a partner of an international firm of accountants with which
he practiced for over 20 years.

The Committee is responsible for the appointment of external
auditor, reviewing the Group’s financial information and
providing oversight of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal control system. It is also responsible for reviewing the
interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. It meets regularly to review
financial reporting and internal control matters and to perform
such duties it has unrestricted access to both the Company’s
external and internal auditors.

During the year, the major work performed by the Audit
Committee included:

reviewing the final results for the year ended 31 December
2011 and the interim accounts for the six months ended 30
June 2012 respectively with the external auditor;

. reviewing the activities of the Group’s internal audit
function and its findings and recommendations as laid
down in the internal audit reports;

reviewing the 2012 annual audit plan;

considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget;

. reviewing the revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee for the Board’s approval; and

reviewing the Policy for the reporting of improprieties for
the Board's approval.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

In 2012, The Audit Committee held two meetings, and the attendance
records of individual committee members are set out below:

HE BT

BRI

Number of Meetings

attended/held

s EEEE (£E) Mr Sze Robert Tsai To (Chairman) 2/2

BEREALE Mr Ip Kai Ming 2/2

BamKEE Mr So Hop Shing 2/2
BriZ B e REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

FNEESRERARBMFEE - AR
AV NBEBRARRNATETRARER
AEBHREHNGE  MEZFSROES -

FHMEZEEMAMOKE RBIIFNITE
% HBYIFATESFTEMALLLES
o R BBELBEEL  HAKE
£ FRERENRETRE ©

RER FHZEEERTARAESNM
ENNBERERRETEERENSEE  IF
H—?%*Tﬁfﬁ$ A B THMARNEE -

RUME  FHEZEEMEFTSRLERE
ﬁJ:M/EEE'i%%%Ht

MMEBZN T —FMBFT-KE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s
remuneration policy, and the formulation and review of the
specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee is
chaired by Mr Ip Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-executive
Director. The other members are Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, Mr So
Hop Shing, Mr Li Jin Hua and Mr Chan Kwong Yu.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the fees
of the Directors, and payment of bonus to the management staff.
It also reviewed the Company’s proposed salary adjustments
to its employees. In this regard, the Remuneration Committee
made recommendations to the Board for final approval.

In 2012, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting, and

o BUKBERBEXREWMT - the attendance records of individual members are set out below:
HiE BT

SRRE™

Number of Meetings

attended/held

BEREAKE (FE) Mr Ip Kai Ming (Chairman) 11
BB E Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 1/1
BaKEE Mr So Hop Shing 1/1
FRELE Mr Li Jin Hua 1/1
PREF L& Mr Chan Kwong Yu 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee on 28 March
2012. The Committee comprises the Chairman of the Board and
the three Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired
by the Chairman of the Board.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,

o and assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.
RERN RELZECRNESEEZAHET During the year, the Nomination Committee made
—BEENFEH recommendations to the Board on the appointment of a new
director.
TE% ZEERN_TE—_FRNETT—RE In 2012, the Nomination Committee held one meeting, and the
BRI E R EEHNNT attendance records of individual members are set out below:
HE BT
BRBRE
Number of Meetings
attended/held
SERLE (£EF) Mr Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 11
ERALE Mr Ip Kai Ming 11
B E Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 0/1
BRAaKEE Mr So Hop Shing 1/1
1> 2EE IR R BE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
EEeBEHEIAATZEERBEIL B The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the
T T EESETE : corporate governance of the Company and performing the

HIE Mg et AR A R EARIBUR &
R

R MEREENSREEENHEIIR
FEEERR

corporate governance duties as below:

. To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
(Continued)

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

. To review the Company’s compliance with the code of
corporate governance and disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board established the
Nomination Committee, approved the terms of reference of the
Board and the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee, as well as the Shareholders
Communication Policy.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard the Group's
assets.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of
system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group's
objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal control of the Group and reports directly to the
Audit Committee and the Board. It has unrestricted access to
review all aspects of the Group’s activities and internal controls.
It also conducts special audits of areas of concern identified by
the Audit Committee or management. The Audit committee
has free and direct access to the Head of the Internal Audit
Department without reference to the Chairman or Management.



A P B A ()

RZTE—ZF EFCLBEZZESLA
EFEZEPY  BAKBRNAEITERRETT
BER - BB AAERNIBEZIB
GE FRARNEEERSEBNEEIM
HITERTE - APEREIFIERTBRER
ERETEBYNRERETIIE - BENR
FMEREMEZEZE T REEGER -

B S B R TR I 2 BT

EXREEESAVBRYEEARAENG
B CAREIR % R B R E B A A b [ BR 5%
HMAKEMBOAN REEASRE - K
REIGHRERBAMBERR LR LEEN
SR ERIRS  c EFEEEABRREEMER
EREEZ G BRARIEHEEMSIEL
HPR B ARET o

A% ST 2 P <5

HE_E——F+-_A=+—8HIFE "
AN & B B X ok FE A AN EE A EAm B 0 i B
R EFITHE(BBEARR SR BB
W) UWEBMBRBHRARBE D ABE
2,145,000 7T + &% 300,000 7T & 78 ¥ 150,000
5T o

AR
RRBZRBWMERGEELLEDARARAZ2

BES - NOEFE  ARAMEDETLD
FLRIEE 3.29 IRAVIERA R EH DI ZSK -

—ZT—_HFF3I Annual Report 2012

{2 iR
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

In 2012, the Board, through the Audit Committee and Internal
Audit Department, conducted an annual review of the Group's
internal control system. The annual review was coordinated
by the Group’s Internal Audit Department, which, after senior
management and each business and operational unit had
performed their self-assessment, has carried out independent
examination and other post-assessment work on the review
process and results. The results of the 2012 review had been
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of the financial statements for each financial period with a
view to ensuring such accounts give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for
that period. The Company’s financial statements are prepared
in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees paid or payable
to the external auditor for statutory audit services, attestation
work (in relation to interim financial statements issued by the
Company), and tax and consultancy services were HK$2,145,000,
HK$300,000 and HK$ 150,000 respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms Connie Yee Moy
Chan who is a full time employee of the Company. For the year
under review, the Company Secretary has duly complied with
the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening an Extraordinary General meeting (“EGM”)

Shareholders(s) holding not less than 10% of the paid-up capital
of the Company may requisition an EGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more of the requisitionists.

The requisition must also state the name(s) of the
requisitionist(s), the contact details of the requisitionist(s) and
the number of ordinary shares of the Company held by the
requisitionist(s).

If the Board does not proceed to convene an EGM within twenty-
one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than one-half
of the voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene the
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of such requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Section 115A of the Companies Ordinance provides that (i)
shareholder(s) representing not less than one-fortieth of the
total voting rights of all shareholders of the Company or (ii) not
less than 50 shareholders holding the shares in the Company
on which there has been paid up an average sum of not less
than HK$2,000 per shareholder can put forward proposals
for consideration at a general meeting of the Company by
depositing a requisition in writing signed by the relevant
shareholder(s) at the registered office of the Company.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a
retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at a general meeting. The procedures for such
proposal are available on the website of the Company (www.
minxin.com.hk).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention in writing together with his/her contact details
addressing to the registered office of the Company or by
email to mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk for the attention of the
company secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
on 28 March 2012 which aims to enhance the corporate
communication effectively between the shareholders, and
the Board and senior management of the Company through
various official channels so that the shareholders can access the
Company's public information equally in a timely manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During 2012, there has been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out on page 40.

The Directors have resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 7 June
2013 the payment of a special dividend of 5 HK cents per share
totaling HK$22,971,433 (2011: Nil) in additon to the payment of
a final dividend of 4 HK cents per share totaling HK$18,377,146
(2011: 4 HK cents per share totaling HK$18,377,146) for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 45 and in Note 36(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group are
set out on page 192.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
36(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2012,
calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$389,913,000 (2011: HK$33,055,000).

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors serving during the year and at the
date of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with articles 94 and 95 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs Zhu Xue Lun, Sze Robert Tsai To and
Ip Kai Ming will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Mr. Zhu Xue Lun does not offer himself for re-
election. The other two aforesaid Directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 85 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Peng Jin Guang who was appointed as a director
of the Company on 18 June 2012, shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company following
his appointment and, being eligible, offers himself for re-
election.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Company considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”) were as follows:

REQRBZEBERD ZHFR
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company

BOBERBEDL
FERHEE Approximate
EEnE ERME Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held shareholding

®RA (NG $5
Ip Kai Ming Personal interest 666,000 0.14%

BREXFIHEEEN R_TE——F+ A
=+t—H  ARRAEZEBERITREHBMEER
ARl E AR A (RE S R EEGE
XVEBFTIE M E & ) M AR D - B 5 k&5
B TR ZBARIEE 5 M E K05 35215
ATHEFNELMAT SRR EIZEAESTRIA
MEARRIRBMRAZERIORE - MAR
RIZEERREZRBHISHEAT ZFLRN
FAMEFFETARFARERQRNES
REITHEZEREF -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code; and none of the Directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right
during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO recorded that, as at 31 December 2012, the
following corporations had interests (as defined in the SFO) in
the Company:

BAEREDE

BEROGEHE Approximate
YNCIEZE Biat Number of percentage of
Name of Corporation Notes shares held shareholding
Samba Limited (“Samba”) 144,885,000 31.54%
EEERAR(ERED
Vigour Fine Company Limited (“Vigour Fine”) 1 220,580,600 48.01%
RRARERBEEEARETAR([RRERESE])
Fujian Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. (“FIDG") 2 220,580,600 48.01%
Kiat - Notes:
1. S5 BSambam I ERE  WH AES 1. Vigour Fine was the controlling shareholder of Samba and

Samba A AN 2 7] BT #5 144,885,000 & A% 17 #Y
B o BESMMEERAARRZ 75695600
BEAZAD o

2. REREAEEEEFAEENEIBRITR
K W18 B Samba M &R A R 5
Ffr13 144,885,000 A% K 75,695,600 A% A& 17 HY 4

Ny
Z5 o
g

tmEREERARBEBR 2R - ¥
TE-CF+-A=t—H ARFEEH
KB E G5 336 1M iR B < & 50 M A I £
EfRDA R RCE -

A~ B R Rl Ay
ARAFRAGE R WA S 2R

o AARRAHZMBERRRFATRERBA
i EFAIARR B ZAL o

was deemed to be interested in the 144,885,000 shares of
the Company held by Samba. Vigour Fine also directly held
75,695,600 shares of the Company.

2. FIDG directly holds the entire issued share capital of Vigour Fine
and was deemed to be interested in the 144,885,000 shares of
the Company held by Samba, and the 75,695,600 shares of the
Company held by Vigour Fine.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the
ordinary shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2012, no
short positions were recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company renewed the annual management
agreement with Vigour Fine, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, whereby Vigour Fine provides management services
to the Company which include the provision of directors to
the board of directors of the Company. A management fee of
HK$1,880,000 has been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Messrs Peng Jin Guang, Zhu Xue Lun and Li Jin Hua have interest
in the above transaction as directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details in respect of the Company’s Directors
and senior management are set out on pages 15 to 19.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its
products and services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less
than 30% of its products and services to its 5 largest customers.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
at 31 December 2012 are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2012, which are not
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as connected
transactions, are disclosed in Notes 18(b), 19(d), 41(a), 41(b) and
41(f) to the consolidated financial statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in
Notes 9, 34, 41(c), 41(d) and 41(e) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WENG RUO TONG
Chairman

HONG KONG, 26 March 2013
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Min
Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 191, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

EHZ2012F12531H1FF/E  For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
(E7%l| Restated )
(7 Note 2.2)
T BT T BT T
Note HKS’000 HKS 000
B Turnover 5 96,886 301,605
Nk Total revenues 5 93,599 311,302
Hih s — =58 Other gains - net 6 465,127 26,035
—E PN b Total operating income 558,726 337,337
RGEBEARESEFERE  Netinsurance claims incurred and
MAeER commission expenses incurred on
insurance business 7 (35,580) (34,061)
B EMHEKAR Costs of properties sold (35,237) (192,541)
B TR Staff costs (29,710) (30,398)
e Depreciation (1,101) (1,324)
B EERT Other operating expenses (14,463) (20,053)
CERT B Total operating expenses | (116,091)] | (278,377)
=il Operating profit 8 442,635 58,960
BhE B AR Finance costs 9 (12,487) (7,221)
JEMEERIEHIEEEE Share of results of jointly controlled entities 390,575 268,565
e NI Share of results of associates 38,079 1,649
BR AR AR R Profit before taxation 858,802 321,953
FTiSHi sz Income tax expense 11 (32,062) (21,370)
REE A Profit for the year 12 826,740 300,583
R E Dividend
— REARR B — Final dividend 13 18,377 18,377
— IR — Special dividend 13 22,971 —
41,348 18,377
B BN
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
HARN#5E Basic and diluted 14 179.95 65.43
BRERE Dividend per share
— REIEE — Final dividend 4 4
— BRI E — Special dividend 5 —
9 4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B F20129F 12531 HIFF/Z  Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
(Z2%!| Restated )
(7% Note 2.2)

REEEF
H 2 W i

IHHESHMEE
E%¥$E$/@Wﬁm
NFEEE

ﬁ%%@
%ﬁ% HEZEH B
E ﬁ%@

B—RARZEHEE N XK
ﬁ%@?%%% £ 1M @
fﬁ CREH B RS
NG FakE2)
E%\$W%m ~FE

L%ﬁm

AEREEHRES
REEEREE LR,
MKBREERS

HEFEFZES
BREFINIB AT - HF
EHEEE %%QTW
ISR FTE £ RIE S
==
HHE—REREHER
%”%mﬁ%@
B—REAREHEER XK
%E@T%%%\ﬁﬁ@
HEEH B

RARBIRRNAFE
Hit 2 s

FEERHEBSEAE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Available-for-sale financial assets
Fair value changes credited/(charged)
to equity
Release on disposal
Release on partial disposal of interest
in a jointly controlled entity
Release on dilution of interest in a jointly
controlled entity and an associate
Share of changes in equity of jointly controlled
entities and associates
Fair value changes charged to equity

Release on disposal
Deferred income tax

Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of leasehold
building transferred to investment property

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation
of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and associates

Release on partial disposal of interestin a
jointly controlled entity

Release on dilution of interest in a jointly
controlled entity and an associate

Share of changes in equity of a jointly controlled
entity
Release on disposal

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

BT BT
HK$’000 HKS000
826,740 300,583
161,454 (11,199)
(9,741) —
(7,868) —
(21,101) =
(74,328) (11,380)
112 2,638
18,269 (1,875)
66,797 (21,816)
= 9
— 9
22,293 76,020
(27,768) —
(71,849) =
= (820)
(77,324) 75,200
(10,527) 53,393
816,213 353,976
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20124F 1231 H4EE  Asat 31 December 2012

2012 2011
(E%l Restated)
(FEE Note 2.2)
T BT T BT T
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
E = Y Property, plant and equipment 15 19,445 20,454
REYE Investment properties 16 136,193 122,456
HEEHIE L Jointly controlled entities 18 64,901 1,963,657
Benal Associates 19 2,237,071 13,879
Al EEMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 622,094 477,114
BRBEE Reinsurance assets 25 2,523 3,268
BRIEFTISTHEE Deferred income tax assets 35 419 428
3,082,646 2,601,256
RBEE Current assets
EERELEME Completed properties held for sale 22 — 544,509
IR IEEUS A AN Deferred acquisition costs 23 10,811 12,637
RER UK Insurance receivable 24 10,275 11,085
BREBREE Reinsurance assets 25 3,666 1,668
Hoh FE U AR X Other debtors 18(c) 418,438 2,758
BT E \ Prepaid taxes 26 — 6,559
HFENRRIZE Other prepayment and deposits 1,171 3,078
BERFEE BB Financial assets at fair value through
ERMEE profit or loss 27 6,485 1,942
B MIRTT4EF Cash and bank balances 28 168,132 207,204
\ \ 618,978 791,440
DEERFIELENEE Assets classified as held for sale 29 547,786 —
1,166,764 791,440
REBEE Current liabilities
RE2E %) Insurance contracts 30 43,466 41,466
1R B2 FE < X Insurance payable 37 6,061 5,703
Hi BRI EAER Other creditors and accruals 32 20,876 100,449
MEHE TP & Customer deposits from sale of properties — 29,064
RITER Bank borrowings 33 50,000 50,000
—EERRERRBR Loan and advance from a substantial
shareholder 34 — 111,060
&S BRI Current income tax payable 62,372 126
o 182,775 337,868
EAEAFIENENEE Liabilities associated with assets classified
HENaE as held for sale 29 209,358 —
392,133 337,868
RBEEEE Net current assets 774,631 453,572
HEERRBARS Total assets less current liabilities 3,857,277 3,054,828
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

201241231 H#ZE  Asat 31 December 2012

2012 2011
(ZE%!| Restated )
(7 Note 2.2)
T BT T JEIEToT
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RERE 4 Insurance contracts 30 14,554 14,069
RIS BB Deferred income tax liabilities 35 37,972 33,844
52,526 47,913
BEERE Net assets 3,804,751 3,006,915
[ &S Share capital 36(a) 459,429 459,429
Hitf#EE Other reserves 1,927,830 1,930,407
REB = Retained profits
BURAR S Proposed dividend 41,348 18,377
HAth Others 1,307,833 598,702
REM2ERRERR Amount recognised in other
RERRRTTEEFE comprehensive income and
HENEETRAN accumulated in equity relating
FIE to assets held for sale 68,311 —
QRS E AESL Total equity attributable to equity
R holders of the Company 3,804,751 3,006,915
&M Weng Ruo Tong
EBE Director
TinE Li Jin Hua
EE Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20124F 1231 H4EE  Asat 31 December 2012

2012 2011
T BT T BT
Note HKS’000 HKS'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
EN -5y Property, plant and equipment 15 4,135 4,377
TEYHE Investment properties 16 89,193 81,456
Lhy=YNS) Subsidiaries 17 553,333 496,206
HEIEH TR Jointly controlled entities 18 — 205,800
LN Associates 19 188,546 10,746
AHEESRMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 622,094 477,114
1,457,301 1,275,699
REEE Current assets
H b & U AR K Other debtors 18(c) 417,240 67
TR Rige Prepayment and deposits 822 2,198
BAFESBEAIIES  Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 27 224 159
He MIRTT4EF Cash and bank balances 28 38,368 51,863
456,654 54,287
REBEE \ Current liabilities
HA AR KRBT EM  Other creditors and accruals 15,443 11,049
IRITE Bank borrowings 33 50,000 50,000
e A AT 18 Current income tax payable 62,352 —
127,795 61,049
RBEE (AE)FE Net current assets/(liabilities) 328,859 (6,762
HEERARBARS Total assets less current liabilities 1,786,160 1,268,937
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
EEFEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 35 37,972 32,866
37,972 32,866
BEEFE Net assets 1,748,188 1,236,071
&N Share capital 36(a) 459,429 459,429
HittfEFES Other reserves 36(b) 824,524 672,811
REB = F Retained profits
R AR 2 Proposed dividend 41,348 18,377
Hth Others 422,887 85,454
e RE Total equity 1,748,188 1,236,071
SEE Weng Ruo Tong
g Director
EF kS Li Jin Hua
= Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B F20129F 12531 HIFF/Z  Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

E bl Other reserves
BELE
&5RE REBff Eff@kE  NEFRE
RfEg HE B &4 G Leasehold e BRER
Bx  RAEE Capital e RS BES  Investment  buildings  Exchange REEA #5
Share Share  redemption Statutory General Capital  revaluation  revaluation translation it Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total profits equity

B¥Fn  ERFn ERTn BETn BRTn BRFa BRTn BMTn B¥Tn BRFa BETA TR
HAS000  HKSDOO  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSU0O  HKSOOD  HASOO0  HKSOO

FRONEIA1R - A2 At 1 January 2011, as previously reported 459429 384620 47,086 239081 28486 483,985 392,231 51 185817 1761357 445936 2,666,722
REERENASE Total comprehensive income for
R the year, asrestated - - - - - - (21816) 9 7500 53393 300563 353,976
RE Dividend = = = = = = = = = = (13783 (13783)
HERENZER Release on disposal of
investment properties = = = = = = = (51) = (51) 51 =
B Transfers - - - 81515 34193 - - - - 115,708 (115,708) -
HOnE128318 - £E) At 31 December 2011, as restated 459,429 384,620 47,086 3205% 62,679 483,985 370415 9 261,017 1930407 617,079 3006915
AT - Representing:
WIERRRE 2011 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - - 18377 18377
At Others 459,429 384,620 47,086 320,59 62679 483,985 370415 9 261,017 1930407 598,702 2,988,538
HOnE12838 - L7 At 31 December 2011, as restated 459,429 384,620 47,086 320,59 62,679 483,985 370415 9 261,017 1930407 617,079 3006915
R0nF1A1R At January 2012
~maER —As previously stated 459,429 384,620 47,086 3205% 62,679 483,985 370415 9 261,017 1930407 616812 3,006,648
—BHERED A —Prior period adjustments on change
H5% () in accounting policy (Note 22) - - - - - - - - - - 27 267
RoEI 1R - &) At 1 January 2012 a restated 459429 384620 47,086 320,59 62,679 483,985 370415 9 21017 1930407 617,079 3,006,915
TERRENGES Total comprehensive income
forthe year = = = = = = 66,797 = (77,324) (10,527) 826,740 816213
RE Dividend = = = = = = = = = = (18,377) (18,377)
—FBENTEAL Capitalisation by an associate
(190 (Note 19(c) - - - - - 3678 - - - 6% (326762 -
HE-FARIEHER Release on partial disposal of interest
iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ-’yﬁé@ in ajointly controlled entity
(FHE18(c (Note 18(c) - - - (88603 (13400 (64992) - - - (1669%) 166,99 -
—FEAE %“ TERER Release on dilution of interestina
ZEREE (HE80) jointly controlled entity (Note 18 (d)) = = = (195,638) (29,589) (143,500) = - - (368,727) 368,727 =
~FBENTEEREEE  Releaseondilution of interestin
BE (B190) anassociate (Note 19(b) = = = (35,513) (5,189) (55,714) = = = (96,416) 96,416 =
B Transfers - - - M5 38,100 - - - - 3168 (38163 -
20126128318 At31December 2012 459,429 384,620 47,086 344,380 52,600 546,541 137,212 9 183,693 1,996,141 1,349,181 3,804,751
AT Representing:
REM2ENERRR Amount recognised in other
REREZHEHE comprehensive income and
HENERERY accumulated n equity elating
R toassets held forsale - - - - - - - - 68311 68311 - 68311
W ERTERS 2012 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - - 0,348 0,348
b Others 459,429 384,620 47,086 344,380 52,600 546,541 37,212 9 115,382 1,927,830 1,307,833 3,695,092
Ha12E12A318 At 31 December 2012 459,429 384,620 47,086 344,380 52,600 546,541 87212 9 183,693 1,996,141 1,349,181 3,804,751
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHZ2012F12531H1FF/E  For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
iR EBYF T BT
Note HKS$’000 HKS'000
REFHERSORE), Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
A REE operations 40 (8,249) 98,509
B UERTT 7 A & Interest income from bank deposits received 3,266 2,113
ERFLE Interest paid (12,477) (10,139)
EAHIE Tax paid (5,021) (8,859)
REXLKTHES Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
(Fd), R RE operating activities (22,481) 81,624
REEE Investing activities
RIBREEEEEERTE  Placement of bank deposits pursuant to
Mz BRITIF K insurance regulatory requirements (1,412) (1,077)
GFHREIEAAEB=MA Placement of bank deposits with original
ZIRITIER maturity over three months (64,839) (9,985)
BFEEEMIBILE 2 8R7T  Placement of bank balance pending
e regulatory approval (17,806) —
BAYZE - WS RERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (265) (283)
HEMHEESEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 17,415 —
HEME - HeEREE Sales of property, plant and equipment 4 —
HEREME Sale of investment property — 1,390
RETBRERHFHE Net cash outflow from investing activities (66,903) (9,955)
BMERBEECRE) R/ Netcash (outflow)/inflow before
HEE financing (89,384) 71,669
A& Financing
IBIRITER Bank loans obtained — 35,000
BEIIRTEX Bank loans repaid — (120,280)
m—F ZRFRESEH Short-term loan and advance obtained
ERRBR from a substantial shareholder — 176,186
BE —FTER/REEHEF  Short-term loan and advance repaid to
NET a substantial shareholder — (68,006)
RE (FROERSIZ Withdrawal/(placement) of restricted
T3 bank deposits 2,170 (2,881)
REE AR S Dividend paid (18,377) (13,783)
MERS(RE) KA Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
FEE financing (16,207) 6,236
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2201212531 HIEF/Z  Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
iR BEFIT B F T
Note HKSs’000 HKS'000
HeERBEESEEY (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash
GRLA), /1 hn equivalents (105,591) 77,905
1A18&FzRE Cash and cash equivalents
RESEEY at 1 January 145,977 73,259
EXgSEooE Effect of foreign exchange rates changes (320) (5,187)
12831 B&REZES Cash and cash equivalents
RIREZEEY at 31 December 40,066 145,977
ReRREEEWER Analysis of the balances of cash and
DT cash equivalents
B MIRTTHEF Cash and bank balances 28 168,132 207,204
& NIRIT41F » D484 Cash and bank balances classified
HIENEEE as assets held for sale 29 15,078 —
B RIRITHET R Total cash and bank balances 183,210 207,204
B IBIERBEEE R Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant to
RIE MAF R Z ]R1T insurance regulatory
T requirements 28 (23,275) (21,863)
BRI ZRITFER Restricted bank balances 28 (1,639) (3,779)
BfrEEHELE Bank balance pending regulatory
SRITFER approval 28 (17,806) —
JREIEAE BB =1E A Bank deposits with original maturity
ZIRITIER over three months (100,424) (35,585)
40,066 145,977
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in banking investment, insurance,
property development and investment and strategic
investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 17th
Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong
Kong. The Company is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March
2013.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collectively refer
to all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
have been aligned with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— available-for-sale financial assets

— financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss

— investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The following amendment to standard issued by the
HKICPA which is relevant to the operations of the Group
and is mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2012 has been adopted.

The Group adopted the Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred
Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets from 1 January 2012
and changed its accounting policy on measuring deferred
tax arising from investment property that is measured
using the fair value model in HKAS 40 Investment Property.
As a result of the change, the Group measures any deferred
tax arising from investment property using a rebuttable
presumption that the carrying amount of the property will
be recovered entirely through sale. The presumption is
rebutted on a property-by-property basis if the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. Previously,
the Group measured deferred tax arising from investment
property reflecting the tax consequences of recovering
the carrying amount of the investment property entirely
through use. As there is no capital gains tax in Hong Kong,
the deferred tax liabilities previously recognised for the fair
value changes on revaluation of the investment properties
held by the Group in Hong Kong would be affected.

The change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively. It neither affected the deferred income
tax liabilities nor the retained profits as at 1 January
2011. It reduced the deferred income tax liabilities and
increased the retained profits as at 31 December 2011
by HK$267,000. The effect on the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2012 was to
recognise an income tax expense of HK$201,000 (2011:
HK$267,000) if the policy had not been changed.

The change in accounting policy had an immaterial impact
on the Group’s basic earnings per share for the current and
prior years.



—ZT—_FF3I Annual Report 2012

A e BB R R AL R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEFHOR ()

2.2 EEMEURSE

HENGEUBHRERTIER - G
AgE /M NS IEMER R ERE
5] REEERI KRBT RELE 2012512
A3MBLEEFFERERAREK TNEA
IREERERE B EHRE AR -

—  BESHER
25 285 (2011)

- ABUBHRE
ZRE 95

- BEVBHRE
ERIFE 10557

— BRUBHRE
ZERIZE 1157

— BAUKRE
AR5 1257

— BEBUMBE®RE
ZERIZE 13 5%

—  EUEbEH
ERIE 15

EE=H

AR e

s
i 5o
%

2]

[l::3
=
=

Bk

\
/
B
k

I
-4
my
+

i

Hth 2 E U
R B W51

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of following
new standards and amendments which are not yet
effective for the accounting year ended 31 December
2012 and which have not been early adopted in these
consolidated financial statements:

— HKAS 19(2011)

—  HKAS27(2011)

— HKAS 28 (2011)

— HKFRS9

— HKFRS 10

— HKFRS 11

— HKFRS 12

—  HKFRS 13

—  Amendments to
HKAS 1

Employee Benefits
Separate Financial
Statements

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Financial Instruments

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Presentation of Items of

Other Comprehensive
Income
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

HK(FRIC) - INT 20

Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities —
Transition Guidance

Investment Entities

Stripping Costs in the

Production Phase of
a Surface Mine

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new standards and amendments
to standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the impact on
the Group's results of operations and financial position
for the first time adoption of these new standards and
amendments is as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The Amendments to HKAS 1 require the Group to present
separately the items of other comprehensive income that
would be reclassified to income statement in the future if
certain conditions are met from those that would never be
reclassified to income statement. The adoption of these
amendments only affects the presentation of the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and establishes
new principles for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. In December 2010, the HKICPA issued
additions to HKFRS 9 dealing with financial liabilities.
The main changes to the requirements of HKAS 39 are
summarised below:

All financial assets are classified into two measurement
categories: amortised cost or fair value on the basis of both
an entity’s business model for managing groups of financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the individual assets. These two categories replace the
four categories under the current HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

53



54

=& E AR 2 8 Mix Xin Holdings Limited

e B R LR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EHEEFHOR ()

2.2 EEMBEURSE (4)

HEBEENTEAEHERAATRNIR
ERTE - RERDFEAREAKNRD
SRR RIeREERRAYF
BB BEmIIER o B RIEFH IR
1ERX 5 BERETEEERRATFE
FEAE MmUY S RIBR SN o fW1E 1R
EE - ARNAMA R FEES KN EA
EEWENER - MAEXERTBE
Rt ABERA - REWAKBEENIE

TR AR °

BERAXATETIAZEREERER
BEARATEIBHERANGE  RY

ERSHORENABTBYBREED

o5 AV IEREERIT 7 o

FREPBHERELEREIRARBABRL

ERERITENRARTE - XRE

PRIEEREBAGHNEREBRTE - Kig
ERHENT BB EEFRGE LM BE
RENBLBEEARAFEERREZLHR
FEEHAREEME2EARERRETE
MBI REELD B ERRRTE

& o

BB EHREERFEIFRMN 201551 A
1THRZERAENFEEER - WAlRE
Ao M2011 128 - BAEEEIA
ERMBEEVBREENFEIRRES
WS REERE7HMNEE] - MEHE
RN EFLRENNERLFTARE
BEFTEAFE IR BEERBUER
EHERFIFHEINEEER - AEHE
MWER EAZENNTE  RAKE
BIigmAR TR AL ETE -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit
or loss, if they do not meet the criteria specified for
measurement at amortised cost or if doing so significantly
reduces or eliminates an accounting mismatch. An entity
has the option to designate all subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity instrument not held for trading
at fair value through other comprehensive income with
no recycling of gains or losses to the income statement.
Dividend income would continue to be recognised in the
income statement.

Financial assets which contain embedded derivatives
are to be classified in their entirety either at fair value or
amortised cost depending on whether the contracts as a
whole meet the relevant criteria under HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 9 retains all the existing requirements for
derecognition of financial instruments and most of the
requirements for financial liabilities, except that for
financial liabilities designated under the fair value option
other than loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, fair value changes attributable to changes in
own credit risk are to be presented in the statement of
other comprehensive income, and are not subsequently
reclassified to income statement but may be transferred
within equity.

HKFRS 9 is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015 with earlier application permitted. In
December 2011, the amendment to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
issued by HKICPA provided relief from the requirement to
restate prior period comparative information and required
additional disclosures on transition from HKAS 39 to
HKFRS 9. The Group is presently studying the implications
of applying HKFRS 9 but it is impracticable to quantify
its effect as at the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and HK-SIC Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. It
introduces a single approach for determining control for
the purpose of consolidation of subsidiaries by the Group
focused on the concept of the power over the investee,
exposure to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of those returns. The adoption of HKFRS 10 is not
expected to have any financial impact on the Group as all
subsidiaries within the Group satisfy the requirements for
control under HKFRS 10 and there are no new subsidiaries
identified under the new guidance. However, it may in the
future result in investees being consolidated which would
not have been consolidated under the Group's existing
accounting policies or vice versa.

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and divides joint arrangements into joint operations
and joint ventures depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor has rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangements. Joint arrangements
which are classified as joint operations under HKFRS 11 are
recognised on a line-by-line basis to the extent of the joint
operator’s interest in the joint operation. All other joint
arrangements are classified as joint ventures under HKFRS
11 and are required to be accounted for using the equity
method. The Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity
is a joint arrangement under which each investor has joint
control and the rights to the net assets of the arrangement
and it is not a joint operation. The investment is accounted
for using the equity method and therefore, the first time
adoption of HKFRS 11 in 2013 is not expected to have any
financial impact on the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 specifies the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates,
and introduces new disclosure requirements for
unconsolidated structured entities. The adoption of HKFRS
12 only affects the disclosure requirements relating to the
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entity and associates in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for all fair
value measurements required or permitted by HKFRSs. It
clarifies the definition of fair value as an exit price, which
is defined as a price at which an orderly transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability would take place
between market participants at the measurement date
under market conditions, and enhances disclosures about
fair value measurement. The adoption of HKFRS 13 affects
disclosures on investment properties, financial assets
and financial liabilities in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements. The Group is presently studying the
implications of applying HKFRS 13 but it is impracticable
to quantify its effect as at the date of issuance of these
consolidated financial statements.

Other than those disclosed above, the adoption of other
standards and amendments is not expected to have
material impact on the Group as those changes do not
affect the Group.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries
(together referred as the “Group”) and the Group’s
interests in jointly controlled entities and associates made
up to 31 December.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities)
controlled by the Group. Control existed when the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commenced until the date that control ceases. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed, where
necessary, in the consolidated financial statements to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at fair value at the date of acquisition. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s identifiable net
assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the changes in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill
and no gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (Note
2.7(a)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in a jointly controlled entity or an
associate (Note 2.3(b)). In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in respect of that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement or transferred directly to retained profits when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Intra-company transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-company transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
company transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity holders
of the Company.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with Notes
2.18 or 2.19 depending on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)), unless the investments are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.15). The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Jointly controlled entities and associates

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group or
the Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or the Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control
over the economic activity of the entity.

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in jointly controlled entities and associates
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless they are classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) (Note 2.15). Under the equity method, the
investments are initially recognised at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair
value of the investees’ identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investments (if any). Thereafter, the investments are
adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of the investees’ net assets and any impairment
losses on goodwill relating to the investments (Notes 2.4
and 2.9(b)). The consolidated income statement includes
the acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group'’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses on goodwill for the year, whereas
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The accounting policies of the investees have been
aligned, where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Jointly controlled entities and associates
(Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interests
in a jointly controlled entity or an associate, the Group’s
interests are reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interests in a jointly controlled entity or an
associate are the carrying amount of the investments
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investments in the jointly controlled entity or the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entities and
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the investees, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a jointly
controlled entity or significant influence over an associate,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when joint control
or significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (Note 2.7(a)). In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in respect of that
investee are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

When an investment in a jointly controlled entity becomes
an investment in an associate or an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a jointly controlled
entity, the Group continues to apply the equity method
and does not re-measure the retained interest.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Jointly controlled entities and associates
(Continued)

If the ownership interest in a jointly controlled entity or
an associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest is reclassified to consolidated income
statement where appropriate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in jointly controlled entities and associates
are stated at cost less impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)),
unless they are classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.15).
The results of jointly controlled entities and associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

2.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (Note 2.9(b)).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the gains or losses on disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and land use rights held for own use, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with that asset will flow to the Group and
the cost of that asset can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

(a) Straight line method

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying amount
and is recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:

Leasehold land and land use Over the unexpired term
rights held for own use of the lease

Over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the
lease and 30 years

Buildings held for own use

Computer equipment 20% - 50%
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b) Reducing balance method

Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,

and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An

asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to

its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount

is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9(b)).

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are land or buildings, or both
which are owned or held to earn rental income or for
capital appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the
companies within the Group. They comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property on a property-
by-property basis when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at their costs,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value. Fair value is
based on active market prices and adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Investment property that is being redeveloped
for continuing use as investment property, or for which the
market has become less active, continues to be measured
at fair value.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “Other gains — net”.

2.7 Financial assets
(a) Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

The Group recognises financial assets on the date it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus, in
case of financial assets not held at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Transaction costs
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in the income statement immediately.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement
(i) At fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition, but exclude those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets held for trading are financial assets
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial assets
that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.
Derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”) are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges.

Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition when:

— the assets are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis ; or

—  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise.

If a financial asset contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the Group may designate the entire hybrid
contract as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss unless:

—  the embedded derivative(s) does not significantly
modify the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the financial asset; or

—  the separation of the embedded derivative(s) from
the financial assets is prohibited.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i) At fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets under this category are subsequently carried
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value are included in the consolidated income statement
within “Other gains - net” in the period in which they arise.
Upon disposal, the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying value is included in the consolidated income
statement within “Other gains — net” in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “Other revenues” when the
Group's right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to
be realised within twelve months from the reporting date.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any
(Note 2.9(a)(i)).

Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets except for those with maturities greater than twelve
months after the reporting date or are expected to be
realised after twelve months from the reporting date
which are classified as non-current assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any (Note 2.9(a)(ii)).

Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets except for those with maturities greater than twelve
months after the reporting date which are classified as
non-current assets.

(iv)  Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other three categories
above. They include financial assets intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time, but which may be sold in
response to need for liquidity or changes in the market
environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value
except for investments in equity securities that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried
at cost less impairment losses, if any (Note 2.9(a)(iii)).
Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains or losses on monetary items such
as debt securities which are recognised in the income
statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(iv)  Available-for-sale (Continued)

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains
or losses on disposal include the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
accumulated fair value adjustments which are previously
recognised in other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified from equity to the income statement.

Financial assets in this category are classified as non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the financial assets within twelve months from the
reporting date.

(c) De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

(d) Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices (bid prices) at the reporting date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a
quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or
a price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it is not active, the
fair value of the instrument is estimated using valuation
techniques that provide a reliable estimate of prices which
could be obtained in actual market transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate
at the reporting date applicable for an instrument with
similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models
are used, inputs are based on market data at the reporting
date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Hedging

The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for
derivatives which may qualify as eligible cash flow hedges
or fair value hedges.

2.9 Impairment of assets
(a) Financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the assets (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— the Group granting to the issuer or obligor, for
economic or legal reasons relating to their financial
difficulty, a concession that a lender would not
otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the issuer or obligor
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

—  observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial asset in the
group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
(i)  Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment loss on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(i)  Held-to-maturity

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
held-to-maturity financial assets carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If a held-to-maturity financial asset
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment loss on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

(iii)  Available-for-sale

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the equity securities below their cost is considered in
determining whether the assets are impaired.



—ZT—_FF3I Annual Report 2012

A BB R AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEgFHEUR ()

2.9 EEBE ()
(a) &REE (48)
(i) AR E ()

EREREEEAHLESREEN
BRE CEREELRBESANERD
ZIBREMOBEERRR - AEER
M R H) R 5B 1R TR M AR AR (F0 Bk
ERASENREE) BRI FED
ERRZEREE <A EDRARER
MR EREAE -

AR K N5 B B 488 4 8 R 4 o B AR R
FmME - REERZBEESHNREE
HEAUSMEERRRMSLRETE
ZEFRRBA R REMBORENHT
BT EBREKN)ERAE -

FEIR s R AR Y A4 H & A E R
BEEETSRaRER - RRZFE
ENAFELRRETMEMIERERER
W R NER - THERREDZNIRES
ERETANHART - BE - ERNER
RAERREBRRRE — P HIROEM
E D BIE X 1R a5 R A HERR o

FEBRYRE IHRHBEEBIESFHQ
RN - MaxiE e r] BE Ei8 s
RAERBEBEEREENEHAH
& BEREBENERER AR

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(i)~ Available-for-sale (Continued)

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had
been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to the income statement. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in the income statement
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the equity
securities and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset, where the effect of discount is
material.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised
directly in statement of comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. Furthermore, any further declines in
value after an impairment loss had been recognised in the
income statement should be recognised immediately in
the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an available-
for-sale debt securities increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the income statement,
the reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

73



74

=& E AR 2 8 Mix Xin Holdings Limited

e B R LR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EHEEFHOR ()

2.9 EEBEE)

(b) HAthJF 5l &

AEBEESZ2FBENEEEAETRETR
—HEFTRMEELCHBERE - BRE
ERFHREARAIRERZEEEFTE
W BRLEFREEETAR - EF
ESHHRFIFR N BRREE A A&

EW B EETTRERA °

WERLLEHREFE - HALHIFECHE
EETFERENAR  BfFZEE
WA E 25 - AJRESBENEEZ A
FEMRLERNSEREERE 2K
=E Q% o HEFHEEREER - A5 K
KR RESERERREFHISEHE
B EE AN B B 2 LR B0 R BV B A
FIRE - R ERBE - WREEME
ERRERAZRN LW IFBINEMBE
- RIAREE A B
AeRANKNEEHRS (A—ERE

EPMELENR TR

EEEA)RETE KL EH o

EEERHEMBNRSELEMNERER
BERBEARE SRR - NEERAER
BEER - EERR e EEEMARE
EiER - BERIESIREZRSESE
B EREENREE  ERERE
R A% B AR EERREE - 8
BEMEREET AR Z2EREER R
FEMBEERAKEEREE(NEE

EE) -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is
an indication that a non-financial asset is impaired. Assets
that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are at least
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for a non-financial asset is required, the asset'’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable
amount of an asset is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
for the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(b) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed in subsequent periods. Previously recognised
impairment losses on other assets are reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any amortisation or depreciation),
had no impairment loss been recognised against the asset
in prior periods. Reversal of impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.

(¢) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34
“Interim Financial Reporting”, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (Notes 2.9(a) and 2.9(b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.

2.10 Insurance contracts classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits
on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10%
more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not
occur.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts
(a) Classification

Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts issued by the Group are
casualty and property insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s customers
against the risk of causing harm to third parties as a result
of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include
both contractual and non-contractual events. The typical
protection offered is designed for employers who become
legally liable to pay compensation to injured employees
(employers’ liability) and for individual and business
customers who become liable to pay compensation to a
third party for bodily harm or property damage (public
liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the
Group's customers for damage suffered to their properties
or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake
commercial activities on their premises could also receive
compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the
inability to use the insured properties in their business
activities (business interruption cover).

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the
income statement as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or
third parties damaged by the contract holders. They
include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and
arise from events that have occurred up to the reporting
date even if they have not yet been reported to the Group.
The Group does not discount its liabilities for unpaid
claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the
input of assessments for individual cases reported to the
Group and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but
not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate cost
of more complex claims that may be affected by external
factors (such as court decisions).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(b) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with
and are related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life
of the contracts as premium is earned.

(c) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses are
used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to the income
statement initially by writing off DAC and subsequently
by establishing a provision for losses arising from liability
adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision). Any DAC
written off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be
reinstated.

(d) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under
which the Group is compensated for losses on one or
more contracts issued by the Group and that meet the
classification requirements for insurance contracts in Note
2.10 are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts
that do not meet these classification requirements are
classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered
into by the Group under which the contract holder is
another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included as
“Insurance contracts” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(d) Reinsurance contracts held (Continued)

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due
from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that
are dependent on the expected claims and benefits
arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.
Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with
the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance
with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance
liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognised as an expense over the terms
of reinsurance contracts and are included as “Insurance
payable” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment
on a regular basis. If there is objective evidence that the
reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the income
statement. The Group gathers the objective evidence
that a reinsurance asset is impaired and calculates the
impairment losses using the same processes adopted for
loans and receivables as described in Note 2.9(a)(i).

(e) Receivables and payables related to insurance
contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These
include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and
insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of
the insurance receivable to its recoverable amount and
recognises that impairment loss in the income statement.
The Group gathers the objective evidence that an insurance
receivable is impaired and calculates the impairment
losses using the same processes adopted for loans and
receivables as described in Note 2.9(a)(i).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(f) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell (usually
damaged) property acquired in settling a claim (salvage).
The Group may also have the right to pursue third parties
for payment of some or all costs (subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for
claims, and salvage property is recognised in other assets
when the liability is settled. The allowance is the amount
that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the

property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability for
claims and are recognised in other assets when the liability
is settled. The allowance is the amount assessed that can
be recovered from the action against the liable third party.

2.12 Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual ownership right existed. The Group acquired
the rights to use certain land in Mainland China which
are held for development for sale. The premiums paid
for those land use rights are classified as inventories in
accordance with HKAS 2 “Inventories” and measured at
lower of cost and net realisable value. Land use rights are
transferred to properties under development for sale upon
commencement of development.

2.13 Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale is included as
current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties sold
in the ordinary course of business less estimated variable
selling expenses and anticipated costs to completion, or
by management’s estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Properties under development for sale
(Continued)

Development costs of properties comprise land use
rights, construction costs, capitalised finance costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period of a normal operating cycle. On completion,
the development costs of properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

2.14 Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are completed
properties remaining unsold at the reporting date and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development cost attributable to the
unsold properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties sold
in the ordinary course of business less estimated variable
selling expenses, or by management’s estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

2.15 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if the carrying amount is recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
a continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is
available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for
sale, the carrying amounts of the non-current assets (and
all individual assets and liabilities in the disposal group)
shall be measured in accordance with applicable HKFRSs.
Then, on initial classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Deferred tax assets, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associates), insurance contracts and investment properties,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale (Continued)

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for
sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

If a non-current asset previously classified as held for sale,
or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale no longer met the recognition criteria stated above,
the Group measures that asset at the lower of its carrying
amount before that asset was classified as held for sale,
adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation or revaluation
that would have been recognised had that asset not been
classified as held for sale, and its recoverable amount at
the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

The Group includes any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to
be classified as held for sale in income from continuing
operations at the date of the subsequent decision not to
sell.

2.16 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less impairment losses, if any.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash investments
with original maturity of three months or less from the
date of investment less bank overdrafts.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Financial liabilities — Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

2.19 Financial liabilities — Creditors and payables

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with Note 2.20, creditors and payables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.20 Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Financial guarantee liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the guarantees on the
date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group'’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the present value of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liabilities
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income
statement.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow of
economic benefits with respect to any one item included
in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for
example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of economic
benefits occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow
is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

2.23 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at closing exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss in the income statement.
Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
equity investments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities in their statement of financial
position are translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

— income and expenses in their income statement
are translated at average exchange rates, unless
these average exchange rates are not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing at the transaction dates. In such case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investments in foreign operations are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.24 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.6,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of that investment
property at its carrying value at the reporting date unless
that investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in that
investment property over time, rather than through sale.
In all other case, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised on the following basis provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount can be measured reliably:

(a) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the risks and rewards of the
respective properties are transferred to the purchasers,
which is when the construction of relevant properties has
been completed and the properties have been delivered
to the purchasers and collectability of related receivables
is reasonably assured.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as “Customer
deposits from sale of properties” under current liabilities.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flows discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(c) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the income statement in equal installments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

(d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

(e) Short-term insurance contracts

Gross premiums from the sale of short-term insurance
contracts are recorded when written.

Earned premiums are recognised as revenue proportionally
over the period of coverage. The portion of premium
received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired
risks at the reporting date is reported as the unearned
premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction
of commission.

(f) Management fee

Management fee is recognised upon the provision of
services.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.27 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in
the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceased when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed.

2.28 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (including those for leasehold land) net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

2.29 Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. When payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. These pension plans are defined
contribution schemes which the Group pays fixed
contributions and has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
services rendered in the current and prior periods.

The Group's contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is
available.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Share-based compensation

An associate (previously recognised as a jointly controlled
entity) of the Group sets up a cash-settled share-based
payment plan, namely Share Appreciation Rights (“SAR”").
According to the plan, SAR is not vested until fulfilling
services in the vesting period and meeting required
performance. The changes in fair value of liability incurred
have been recognised in the income statement by that
associate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Employee benefits (Continued)
(e) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy without realistic
possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due more than
twelve months after the reporting date are discounted to
present value.

2.30 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products or services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the
Company is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company'’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved for distribution.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.32 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is
related to the Group.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(ii) one entity is an associate or a joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or a joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.32 Related parties (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in Note 2.32(a).

(vii) a person identified in Note 2.32(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes of
them, either due to changes of management’s judgement
or the evolvement of the actual circumstances, would
cause the Group's financial position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
believes that the assumptions and estimates that have
been made in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are appropriate and that these
consolidated financial statements therefore present fairly
the Group’s financial position and results in all material
respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months are
discussed below.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of investment properties
held by the Group is current prices in an active market
for similar lease or other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making this
judgement, the Group considers information including
current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices. As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of
the Group's investment properties was approximately
HK$136.19 million (Note 16).

(b) Casualty and property insurance contract
liabilities

For casualty and property insurance contracts, estimates
have to be made for both the expected ultimate costs of
claims reported at the reporting date and for the expected
ultimate costs of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”)
at the reporting date. It may take a significant period of
time before the ultimate claims costs can be established
with certainty and for some type of policies, IBNR
claims form the majority of the insurance liability in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The ultimate
costs of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range
of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such as
the Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Casualty and property insurance contract
liabilities (Continued)

The main assumption underlying these techniques is
that past claims development experience can be used to
project future claims development and hence ultimate
claims costs. As such, these methods extrapolate the
development of paid and incurred losses, average cost
per claim and claim numbers based on the observed
development of earlier years and expected loss ratios.
Historical claims development is mainly analysed by
accident year, as well as by significant business lines and
claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed,
either by being reserved at the face value if loss adjustor
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their
future development. The assumptions used are those
implicit in the historical claims development data on
which the projections are based. Additional qualitative
judgement is used to assess the extent to which past
trends may not apply in future (for example to reflect one-
off occurrence, changes in external or market factors such
as public attitudes of claiming, economic conditions, levels
of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well
as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy conditions
and claims handling procedures), so as to arrive at the
estimated ultimate costs of claims that present the likely
outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking into
account of all the uncertainties involved.

(c) Land appreciation tax

Land appreciation tax in Mainland China is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including
costs of land use rights, development and construction
expenditures.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Land appreciation tax (Continued)

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in Mainland
China which has been included in income tax expense
of the Group. The Group has not finalised its land
appreciation tax returns with the tax authority at the
reporting date. Because of the uncertainty in determining
the ultimate tax liability during the ordinary course
of business, the Group needed to make significant
judgement in determining the amount of liability of land
appreciation tax and recognised the liability based on
management’s best estimates at the reporting date. Where
the final tax outcome of these estimations is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax expense and the liability of land
appreciation tax in the period in which such determination
is made. As at 31 December 2012, the Group has recorded
the liability of land appreciation tax of approximately
RMB2.52 million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.13
million) related to the property development project in
Mainland China. The liability was offset against the prepaid
land appreciation tax and included in the assets classified
as held for sale in the consolidated statement of financial
position (Note 29).

(d) Current income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amounts of the provision for income tax and the timing
of the payment of the related income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the provisions for current
income tax and deferred income tax in the period in which
such determination is made. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group had deferred income tax liabilities of approximately
HK$37.97 million (Note 35). The deferred income tax
liabilities will increase or decrease by approximately
HK$1.37 million if the actual applicable tax rate differs by
1%.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution

The Group’s major associated financial institution, Xiamen
International Bank (“XIB”) and its subsidiaries (“XIB Group”),
is principally engaged in banking business (Note 19). In
preparing its statutory consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards, certain
critical accounting estimates and judgement have been
applied as described below:

—  Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted
in active markets are determined by XIB Group using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models. To the extent
practical, models use only observable data, however
areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
volatilities and correlations require management of XIB
Group to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect reported fair value of financial
instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

—  Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
losses regularly, and would further assess impairment
losses when there are indications of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from an individual loan,
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse
change in the payment status of borrowers in a group
(e.g., payment delinquency or default), or national or
local economic conditions that correlated with defaults
on assets in the group. The individual impairment loss is
based upon best estimate of the present value of cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at
the original effective interest rate. When assessing the
impairment losses of a loan portfolio under the collective
evaluation method, management of XIB Group uses
estimates based on historical loss experience, which
subjects to adjustments according to observable data
to reflect the current economic conditions, for assets
with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence
of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when
estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount
and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to
reduce any differences between loss estimated and actual
loss experience.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

—  Valuation of long-term equity investments

An unlisted equity investment held by XIB Group was
measured at cost in accordance with the PRC Accounting
Standards. For the purpose of financial reporting of the
Group in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.3(b), the Group has appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of that equity
investment held by XIB Group and re-measured at fair
value in these consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of that equity investment has been
estimated using a market comparison approach by an
independent professional valuer. Based on the market
ratio (e.g., price/earning and price/book ratios) of a
number of listed companies engaged in similar industries
as the investee and the investee’s historical financial
information, management of the Group makes estimates
and judgement on the appropriate adjustments required
to reflect the circumstances of the investee, including
the liquidity discount applicable to the paid-up capital
of the investee as compared to those of the shares of a
listed company, for fair value estimation purposes. The
Group's share of fair value changes is accounted for in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. As at 31 December 2012, the Group's
attributable share of the fair value gain (after deferred
income tax adjustment) arising from this investment was
approximately HK$57.34 million. To the extent that the
liquidity discount rate increases or decreases by 1%, the
Group’s investment revaluation reserve (after deferred
income tax adjustment) will decrease or increase by
approximately HK$1.05 million respectively.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group's business activities expose it to a variety of
insurance risk and financial risks including market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. This note summarises the
Group's exposure to these risks, as well as its objectives,
policies and processes for managing and the methods
used to measure these risks.

The Group’s investment policy is to prudently invest its
funds in a manner which satisfies the Group's liquidity
requirements and generates optimal returns to the Group
within a manageable risk level. The Group's overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's performance.

The Board of Directors (“Board”), representing the interest
of shareholders, is the highest decision making authority
of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board has adopted procedures for
evaluating and approving significant investment decisions.
Given the nature of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities, their risk exposures are monitored by the Group
primarily on a qualitative basis.

The General Manager (“GM”") is responsible for managing
the Group's various types of risks, approving detailed
risk management policies, and approving material risk
exposures or transactions within his authority delegated
by the Board. The other members of the management
team assist the GM in fulfilling his responsibilities for the
day-to-day management of risks.



—ZT—_FF3I Annual Report 2012

A BB R AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DR B e B 55 J g B (7))

4.1 PRB S S R B R R (4

AEBREY T -ERNBEGRS - B
RUER D MLEWAEERE  UER
EHEERENAMERR - B MR
B o B E RO DE R I A RE (R ES TR B e
BUNEBERE - R#EBERNEEHN
BEST  AB2EEE s RaiEsR
35 o

(a) PREwJE R

AEERZBRARRERIEH o ANEI
PSRN ERR MAKEH A BRR
ZHE T e

ERA—RERE R RREEEERR
EWH A REME R I EE R E SR
THEEENRER - ARERREONES
e HRERETRANER - FES
TRIFER AR o

WiRER A KM A IR E (B R B E R AR
MR R - AN SR B T B ) = 2 R = B R
HEBBEARRRETNERAEE &
BEBRERBARIBENNEZSEER
BEFTER TR ELE - BRRR
B IR MU BERBERER
TR ER AR RIMRENKFEF
BBFAR -

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of Group’s organisation
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the
business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties
throughout the organisation which helps to promote
appropriate internal control environment.

(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the Group
manages such risks.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of
the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of
an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits
are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random
and the actual numbers and amounts of claims will
vary from year to year from the level established using
statistical techniques.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of
risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.

(i) Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the increase
in number of cases coming to court that were inactive or
latent for a long period of time. Estimated inflation is also a
significant factor due to the long period typically required
to settle these cases.

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the
underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and
amount of risk, industry and geographical location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right to
re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it can impose
deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment
of fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the
Group to pursue third parties for payment of some or all
costs (subrogation). Unless the legislation requires, the
Group's strategy limits the total exposure of any individual
policy to a certain amount.



Pres. 1
el

2= &% Annual Report 2012

A e BB R R AL R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DR B e B 55 J g B (7)) 4

4.1 PRB S S R B R R (4
(a) PrBoEl R (48)
(i) BEERISEERNEEREE(E)

BRER#EEERBRE a1
&E%ﬁ@%ﬁ% R E o It FHRR I
BZEANEE T SEXRRBRFEARE
BREERABRNERX - EEBNHRR
RIS - B R EER - AEES R
AR5 E B 18 AN FR SN BARIRIRE

BB E ST E AR RRE SRR
A& 2 R RO EFRERHMT - A
AR EREENRRET(EELS
R RIFER)HREEFSE -

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Group
should not suffer total net insurance losses more than the
prescribed amount. In addition to the overall reinsurance
program, additional reinsurance protection for any
individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
accepted is summarised below, with reference to the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (gross and net
of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:

2012
—# 5
EEER kR
HE General Accident Hit ke
Motor liability  and health Others Total
BETT  BEFn  BETT  BEFn BEFn
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
E ] Gross
BE Hong Kong 33,457 9,068 5,583 276 48,384
R Macao 674 705 803 7,454 9,636
RBREAAE 8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 34,131 9,773 6,386 7,730 58,020
FE Net
G Hong Kong 28,266 8,980 5,583 93 42,922
R Macao 599 701 766 6,843 8,909
RBER4E T8 Total insurance liabilities, net 28,865 9,681 6,349 6,936 51,831
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4 PR B BAps B B (48 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 B R B E B R 2R (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) PrBE Py (%) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(i) BEEHAEREEFREE (&) (i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)
2011

—f& B
ERER Rigg

ot General Accident Hih o

Motor liability ~ and health Others Total

ERTT  BETT BETT BRTT ENTX
HKS000  HKSDO0  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSO0O

B Gross

B Hong Kong 33,949 2634 11,504 173 48,260
R Macao 525 589 515 5,646 7275
ReEMEE T8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 34,474 3223 12,019 5,819 55,535
et Net

B Hong Kong 29,996 2526 11,431 9% 44,049
R Macao 467 586 476 5,021 6,550
ReETRE 58 Total insurance liabilities, net 30,463 3112 11,907 5,117 50,599
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i)  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured events
that occurred during the term of the contract even if the
loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As a
result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time
and a larger element of claims provision relates to incurred
but not reported claims. There are several variables that
affect the amounts and timing of cash flows from these
contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent risks by
individual contract holders and the risk management
procedures adopted. The compensation paid on these
contracts is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the lost of earnings and
rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will incur as
a result of the accident.

The estimated costs of claims include direct expenses
to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes
all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However,
given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is
likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from
the original liabilities established. The liabilities for these
contracts comprise provisions for IBNR, provisions for
reported claims not yet paid and provisions for unexpired
risks at the reporting date.

In calculating the estimated costs of unpaid claims (both
reported or not), the Group’s estimation techniques are
a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the
loss ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost
of insurance claims and insurance premiums earned in
a particular financial year in relation to such claims) and
estimates based upon actual claims experience using
predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to
actual claims experience as time passes.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i)  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments (Continued)

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater
degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the costs
of settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim event is available. In
estimating the amounts of IBNR which make reasonable
provisions for the claims and the unexpired risks, it is
necessary to project future claims costs and associated
claims expenses and simulate the outcomes of claims
liabilities using models. These models are simplified
representation of many legal, social and economic
forces and may not be entirely appropriate for the types
of insurance business being analysed. It is certain that
actual future claims and claims expenses will not develop
exactly as projected and may vary significantly from the
projections.

In estimating the liabilities for the costs of reported
claims not yet paid the Group considers any information
available from loss adjusters and information on the costs
of settling claims with similar characteristics in previous
periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis
or projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of their development and incidence on
the rest of the portfolio.

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques
to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides
a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the
experience being projected. The projections given by
the various methodologies also assist in estimating
the range of possible outcomes. The most appropriate
estimation technique is selected taking into account the
characteristics of the business class and the extent of the
development of each accident year.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to incorporate
the various assumptions made in order to estimate the
ultimate costs of claims. The choice of selected results
for each accident year of each class of business depends
on an assessment of the technique that has been most
appropriate to observed historical developments. In
certain instances, different techniques or combination
of techniques have been selected for individual accident
year or group of accident years within the same class of
business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group’s motor,
employees’ compensation and domestic helpers’ insurance
portfolio, the paid and incurred loss development methods
supplemented by BF method are applied. For other classes
of insurance portfolio, the incurred loss development
method is used to project the claim liabilities.

The paid and incurred loss development methods are
used to project the ultimate costs of the claims, and the BF
method relies on a gradual transition from an estimated
loss ratio to an experience-rated development. BF method
is applied to the more recent accident years, for which the
paid and incurred loss development methods may yield
less accurate results.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested by
an analysis of sensitivity around different scenarios. The
change in the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered and also the employers’ liability claims is the most
critical to the assumptions used to estimate the liabilities
for these insurance contracts.

The Group believes that the liabilities for these claims
carried at the reporting date are adequate. However, an
increase of 10% in the costs of these claims would require
the recognition of an additional loss of approximately
HK$2.6 million (2011: approximately HK$2.3 million) net of
reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described
above does not take into account of changes in other
variables, as they are considered to be less material. Such
an assessment and the relative materiality of individual
variables may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group's
ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims. The top
half of the table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate
of total claims outstanding for each accident year has
changed at successive reporting dates. The bottom half of
the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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DR B S P 5 el e A B (4 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 By R Es E B R 2R (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PRBJER (78) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iv) BREE 7T — (RBR B 18 %R Ay & (iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
BE#RA (B development tables (Continued)
REEFEE — EBE Insurance claims - gross
EHEE Accident year 2008 2009 2010 011 012 HBETotal
FEfr  BEFr BETT B¥Fr BETn | E%x
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
et EREERA Estimate of ultimate claims costs
RENER atend of accident year 26780 34938 27,204 26324 25738
—Ff one year later 17412 1,839 18255 13814
—Ff o years later 18215 25762 20,889
=Ff three years later 18127 26,766
Mk four years later 18616
BHnGT 2 ARE Current estimate of cumulative claims 18616 26766 20889 13814 5738 | 105823
ELZAIR Cumulative payment to date (18,340) (24,884) (17571) (11,402 (5,900) (78,097)
276 1,882 3318 2412 19838 21,7126
W08 EFF 2B Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2008 3,545
31,27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4

DR i e B 55 S g B (7))

4.1 PREg SRS JEL R R &R (A
(a) PrEgE R (%)

(iv) SR DT — 1R B2 A 18 IR B9 8
R (E)

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables (Continued)

REFE(E — FEE Insurance claims - net
EHEE Accident year 2008 2009 2010 011 012 B Total
BEfr BT BETT B%Fr BETr | BETx
HKSO00 — HKSOOO  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKsOoD | HKS000
[ErRRRENA Estimate of ultimate claims costs
RENER atend of accident year B4 31,190 24,844 21529 2273
% one year ater 16,592 21,954 16,149 11,949
%k two years later 16919 2,036 18411
=FR three years later 16,619 23750
MEf fouryears later 17,121
EWfEaC 2ATRE Current estimate of cumulative claims 17,2 750 18411 11949 PIMIE! 92,504
ESZR Cumulative payment to date (16,849) (2187 (15,103) 9632) (530 | (68773)
276 1878 3308 2317 15952 3,731
W8 EEAIZER Liabilites i respect of prior years
hefore 2008 2,001
25,732

AEBAETRMRRERR L — R
BN RER  BABFE—BERED

The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
covers on a number of short-term insurance products that
have remained unchanged in recent years.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from movements
in market rates and prices. The Group is exposed to market
risk because of its investments classified as available-for-
sale financial assets or financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The risk includes potential losses arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholder’s value by maintaining risk exposures within
acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market risk is
based on restricting individual operations to invest within
a list of permissible instruments authorised by the Board to
ensure all risks arising are thoroughly identified, properly
measured and adequately controlled.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations denominated in various currencies, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“‘RMB”).

In respect of receivables and payables held in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying and selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-
term imbalances.

The Group's borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan. Given this,
management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s and the Company'’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than

the functional currency of the entity to which they relate at
the reporting date:

rEH KA F]
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
ANR¥EFw | ARETFITT| AREFT | ARKTF T
RMB ‘000 RMB 000 | RMB ‘000 RMB ‘000
Al & 5 Eh Available-for-sale
BE financial assets 500,156 386,640 500,156 386,640
H i fE UL BR ZX Other debtors 335,677 — 335,446 —
HE KIRTTATF  Cash and bank balances 36,143 23,001 20,443 7,355
HihE[TEEZX % Other creditors and
JEETE R accruals (5,435) (1,294) (5,430) (1,294)
FEA AR ER R I8 Current income tax payable (50,130) — (50,130) —
816,411 408,347 800,485 392,701




Pres. 1
)

- Z“Z—_HF %3] Annual Report 2012

A e BB R R AL R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DR B e B 55 J g B (7))

4.1 PRB S S R B R R (4
(b) TR (45)
(i) SMNEEE(E)

TRINFAKRERARRBRE®RA FAE
E?Hﬂﬁﬂ’]éﬁ‘fﬁﬁﬁ@)ﬁﬁﬁkxiﬁﬂ
[ 39 7 52 18 % AN 2 ) ) ok A5 48 0 A (S
REEMN) R AK D ELN
AHITE

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group's and the Company’s profit after taxation
(and retained profits) and other components of equity in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group and the Company have
significant exposure at the reporting date:

2011
MERBE  HRHERAR i 0 NERAE  HERKENR SERER
A/ (TH)  REEANZE  ARFINEE A/ (FK)  REBENHZE 853 B%‘E’J*’@z
Increase / Effecton Effecton Increase / Effecton Effect on
(decrease) profit after other (decrease) profit after other
inforeign taxation and components inforeign taxation and components
exchangerate  retained profits of equity exchange rate retained profits of equity
A7k BRTr Vi Bl AT BETT
% HKS 000 HKS 000 % HKS 000 HKS 000
A5H The Group

AEE Renminbi 5 19,668 31,105 5 1339 23856
5 (19,668) (31,1051 6 (1339) (23,856)

O] The Company
N Renminbi 5 18,677 31,105 5 34 23856
(5 (18,677) (31,105)| I~ (374) (23,856)
TRGEREITIIREEXZFHENZ The sensitivity analysis above has been determined

BABLRONEAEH I EARE
HAEMSEIA SNERR - AL
BB (B RIR TR ) B TR -

assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.
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IO ERRRAEEZERIZZ S
D KB ENRREGH REDS - &
2 BENMRERENERBERET
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(i) B ERE

AEEHEESMBANKADERA
HUESMEEX RN FEEEERT
ROeRMEENREAZRIEZHFNE

REMR o

AEEFEEENRERENREBE
Fr b - BARBEEBESFHORE S
RIBME R EE N BRI RER
AEFBHRPESHNFR - AItHER
BANKREBRN LEBRFX M LT
HRRERE - EMBEREMNEETIR
BERBAEE) T EHEREER

RARENAEAY -

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The stated change represents management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rate over
the period until the next reporting date. In this respect, it
is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong
Dollars and the United States Dollars would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the
United States Dollars against other currencies. Results of
the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on profit after taxation and
equity of each of the Group’s entities measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
Dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date for
presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2011.

The Group is also exposed to foreign exchange rate risk
from its investments in investees which are denominated
in Renminbi.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on investments
held by the Group classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position as available-for-sale financial assets or
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s equity investments held for trading are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy
or sell trading securities are based on the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the index and the
Group's liquidity needs. Investments held in the available-
for-sale portfolio comprise equity investments listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. The listed equity investments
have been chosen based on their long term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for performance
against expectations.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation
(and retained profits) and other components of equity in
response to reasonably possible changes in the relevant
stock market index for listed investments to which the
Group and the Company have significant exposure at the
reporting date:

2012 2011
REEREH HRHKENR HiEnit RERREY  HBH ém&ﬂ YRt
R/ (TH) RERANYE 2R304 H/ (TH) REEHNZE  ERFsHwe
Increase / Effecton Effect Increase / Effecton Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
inthe relevant taxation and components in the relevant taxation and components
riskvariance  retained profits of equity riskvariance  retained profits of equity
Ark BRTr V-l BAf BETT BT
% HKS 000 HKS 000 % HKS 000 HKS 000
A5H The Group
LTHREZEE  Stockmarketindexin
iR respect of listed
investments
RS Hang Seng Index 5 324 - 5 9 -
3) (324) - () 97 -
PBGAEE Shanghai Composite Index 5 - 31,322 5 - 23,989
(5 = (31,322) (5 = (23.989)
A0H The Company
FHREZEE  Stockmarketindexin
RHEH respect of listed
investments
EE3E Hang Seng Index 5 1 - 5 8 -
3) (1) - () ®) -
LiBa%EE  Shanghai CompositeIndex 5 - 31322 5 - 23989
(5 = (31,322) (5 = (23,989)

]
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(if)  Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the stock market
index had occurred and had been applied to the exposure
to equity price risk in existence at the reporting date.
It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group's
and the Company’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index, that none of the Group’s and
the Company’s available-for-sale investments would be
considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible
decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all
other variables remained constant. The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index over
the period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the
risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities
mainly comprise bank deposits and bank borrowings
denominated in floating rates which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group manages these risks
primarily through maintaining the maturity profile of these
assets and liabilities within a short period and monitoring
the market interest rate movements so that the Group
can react accordingly when there are adverse interest rate
movements.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings at the

reporting date. For this purpose the Group defines “net
borrowings” as being interest-bearing financial liabilities

&) - less interest-bearing investments (excluding cash held for
short-term working capital purposes):
2012 2011
BIRA= RREE B = fRHEE
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate amount interest rate amount
E  BETT /B BT
% HKS$’000 % HKSs'000
AEE The Group
ZEYHE Variable rate
BILIRITER HK Dollars bank borrowings 2.4 50,000 23 50,000
P Fixed rate
—FEREH Renminbi borrowings from
ARBEER (a) a substantial shareholder (a) 10.0 111,942 10.0 111,060
161,942 161,060
NN The Company
ZENA 2 Variable rate
BITIRITER HK Dollars bank borrowings 2.4 50,000 23 50,000

(@) 20129128318 — £ E %
EOMAREERWET DB ANHE
DEABELENEERBENE
f&] e

(@) The Renminbi borrowings from a substantial
shareholder were reclassified to liabilities associated
with assets classified as held for sale at 31 December
2012.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued))

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates
of variable rate bank borrowings, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease or increase the Group’s and
the Company'’s profit after taxation and retained profits by
approximately HK$0.5 million (201 1: approximately HK$0.5
million).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had occurred
and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments with variable interest rate held by
the Group and the Company at the reporting date. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that
a customer or counterparty will be unable to or unwilling
to fulfill its repayment obligations for amounts due to the
Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
insurance related receivables and other receivables.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by screening
the counterparties, on-going monitoring and acquiring
collateral from counterparties.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
into account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group or the Company does
not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk other than those
provided in the ordinary course of business (Note 37).

Insurance receivables are required to meet the Group’s
established financial requirements and provide third party
guarantees to the Group when it considered necessary.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from insurance receivables
are set out in Note 24.

As at 31 December 2012, bank balances were placed with
reputable financial institutions with diversification.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either inability
to sell financial assets quickly at their fair value, a counter-
party failing on repayment of a contractual obligation or
an insurance liability falling due for payment earlier than
expected.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash,
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturity value at the reporting date of the Group's and
the Company’s reinsurance assets and financial liabilities
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual

122

SBEERBRE &F BEFEE rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company
can be required to pay:

2012 201
Fo5F Eo¢F
EHFITE ERER Ve ERFR
BEnhE  E-EA4 (BF BEeE  FEA 3
Total  ZEEX  EEWE) Totd  REEX  EEWE)
SREE  contractual  Withinone In the second EEE  contactual  Withinone I the second
Carrying  undiscounted yearor  tofifthyear Camying  undiscounted yearor  tofifth year
amount  cashflow ondemand  inclusive amount cashflow  ondemand inclusive
BeTIn  BEFL BEFn BETx AeTT AT AR TR
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

5H The Group

BE Assets

BRREE Reinsurance assets 6,189 6189 3666 2523 4936 19% 1668 3268

8k Liabilities

REaH Insurance contracts 58020 54020 43466 14554 55,535 55535 41466 14069

(RIE(TH Insurance payable 6,061 6,061 6,061 - 5,703 5703 5703 -

EMERETRESEE  Other creditorsand accruals 94,408 94408 94408 - 100449 100449 100449 -

RIER Bank borrowings 50000 50758 50158 - 50,000 50141 59141 -

—TEREEIR Loan and advance from a

83 substantial shareholder 11942 117,353 117,353 - 111,060 116490 116490 -
30431 326000 311446 14554 300,747 328318 314249 14069
| The Company

af Liabilities

EERETRETEBE  Othercreditorsand accruals 15,443 15,443 15443 - 11,049 11049 11049 -

RAEH Bank borrowings 50000 507158 50158 - 50,000 50141 S0141 -

65,443 65,601 65,601 - 61,049 61,19 61,190 -
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated financial
institution

The financial risks exposure and management objectives
and policies of the Group's associated financial institutions,
XIB Group, are summarised as below:

(i) Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of financial
risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest
rate risk). XIB Group continuously identifies, evaluates
and monitors these risks. XIB Group's aim is to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise
potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

The Board of Directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”)
provides strategy for overall risk management. Its senior
management establishes related risk management policies
and procedures under the strategy approved by the XIB
Board, including written policies covering specific areas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments. Those risk management policies
and procedures are implemented by various departments
after XIB Board’s approval. In addition, its internal audit
department is responsible for the independent review of
risk management and control environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated financial
institution (Continued)

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces
in its operations which arises primarily from loans and
advances, investment portfolios, trade finance, guarantees
and other payment acceptance.

The Risk Management Committee of XIB Group controls
overall credit risk and to implement corresponding
measures for credit risk management by setting out loan
approval limits at various level within the organisation
including its branches.

The credit approval policies and procedures of XIB Group
are standardised. Risk Management Department together
with other relevant departments review and update
the credit policies and procedures periodically. Credit
rating, credit measurement, economic capital, various
post-lending management, indicator control, collective
assessment, risk warning and risk reporting are measures
for managing credit risks.

(i)~ Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group is to ensure the
availability of adequate funding to meet its needs to fund
deposit withdrawals and other liabilities as they fall due,
as well as being able to meet its obligations to fund loan
originations and commitments and to take advantage of new
investment opportunities.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee of XIB Group
establishes the strategy and policy of liquidity
management. The Financial Controller of XIB Group is
responsible for daily liquidity management, monitoring
and analysing the liquidity ratio continuously.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated financial
institution (Continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (Continued)

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to assess
and monitor its liquidity risk and ensures that its Assets
and Liabilities Committee, senior management and Risk
Management Committee can review such indices on a
timely basis.

(iv) Market risk

XIB Group's market risk arises from open positions in the
trading book and banking book in interest rate, foreign
exchange rate, equities and commodities. The trading
book consists of financial instruments and commodities
that are free of any restrictive covenants on their
tradability and held with trading intent, and in order to
or for the purpose of hedging market risk of the trading
book. The banking book consists of financial instruments
not included in the trading book (including those financial
instruments purchased with surplus funds and managed in
the investment book).

The XIB Board, the Risk Management Committee under XIB
Board and the senior management of XIB Group approve
the overall market risk policies and procedures. The market
risk management team monitors the market risk exposure
and report the risk exposures and interest rate sensitivity
to senior management on a regular basis. The senior
management of XIB Group approves the limits over the
foreign currency exposures and the limits for the trading
book in accordance with market risk management policies
established by XIB Board.

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits and
risk limits to identify, monitor and control market risk. XIB
Group performs sensitivity analysis on a regular basis to
assess the interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk of its
trading book and banking book.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated financial
institution (Continued)

(iv)  Market risk (Continued)
—  Foreign exchange risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business in
Renminbi, with other transactions denominated in
foreign currencies, therefore XIB Group is exposed to the
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows. XIB Group manages its
exposures to foreign exchange risk through management
of its net foreign currency position.

— Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that XIB Group's assets, revenue
and economic value would suffer losses or have the risk of
contingent losses due to fluctuations of interest rates and
changes of interest rates structure. The re-pricing risk, the
primary and most common interest rate risk, arises from
the difference between maturity terms (for fixed interest
rates) or between the re-pricing terms (for floating interest
rates) of XIB Group’s assets, liabilities and off balance sheet
commitments. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

XIB Group mainly manages its exposures to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing market
interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash flows. XIB
Group's business in Mainland China operates under the
interest rate scheme regulated by the People’s Bank of
China. XIB Group controls its interest rate risk primarily
through controlling the distribution of the maturity date or
re-pricing date of loans and deposits and the asset-liability

re-pricing gap.



- =Z——F &3 Annual Report 2012

A BB R AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DR B e B 55 J g B (7))

4.1 PREg SV JEL R R &R (A

(e) Mo < Al W MR 119 B 5 el e
(%)

() BELXEHE

EREENEREEBEELE © ()EF
EREEMEMEERBRENEAR
K (i) REEREEFELENEN
AR AR R A R IR O ¥ - M EL A
HEAMEEONE i) REEED
BEARER  IHEREENEBER -

EREEEEEEANTERTREES
BZBe([RESDNEERT BN
EREANARUEREEERANERB
W e

42 EAJE g

AEENERNERRE  EREREE
RREEZE AARAERFBEANE
A ARHER - R &E
M EARRBLABEE S KA

EERNHMAT 5 AEBMAER
BELREREER o i RIRRAE
SERAREEFENE - Rt AEE
REEEEE/FEEUBHRRRAMT
MAERITERMERBR(WE) - £5F
EFEERERAMBIRRAI/AR
NEESEFRE AR GEDBENIAHE
R EB S

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated financial
institution (Continued)

(v)  Capital management

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
(i) to comply with the capital requirements set by the
regulators of the markets where the entities within XIB
Group operate; (ii) to safeguard the ability to continue as
a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns
for equity holders and benefits for other stakeholders;
and (iii) to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored by
XIB Group’s management, employing techniques based on
the guidelines developed by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (“CBRC"), for supervisory purposes.

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total borrowings and advances divided by
total net assets. For this purpose the Group defines total
borrowings and advances as total bank borrowings and
short-term advances (if any) as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Total net assets comprise
all components of equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

During 2012, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2011, was to maintain the gearing ratio within 25%.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
holders of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2012 and

WERBELERAT : 2011 were as follows:
2012 2011
BEFT BT T
HKSs’000 HKS'000
BEE Total borrowings and advances 161,942 161,060
BEEFRE Total net assets 3,804,751 3,006,915
EARBMEHLR Gearing ratio 4.3% 5.4%
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Pursuant to the capital requirements imposed by the
Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a
subsidiary of the Company, Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited (“MXIC"), should maintain at least HK$20 million
in its adjusted net assets calculated according to the
requirements set out in the Insurance Ordinance. In order
to fulfill these requirements, MXIC may adjust the dividend
paid to the Company or issue new shares to the Company.
If MXIC cannot maintain the capital requirements imposed,
the Commissioner of Insurance may place restrictions on
the operations of MXIC.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on the
characteristics of the financial instruments and relevant
market information. The Group measures fair values using
the following hierarchy of methods:

—  Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data

— Level 3: fair values measured using valuation
techniques in which significant inputs are not based
on observable market data

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as held for trading and available-for-sale
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group and the Company is the current
bid price.

All the financial instruments carried at fair value held by
the Group and the Company were measured using Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy. During the year there was no
transfer of financial instruments between Level 1 and Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments held by the Group and the Company at the
reporting date measured at fair value across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement:

E—ZR Level 1
AEHESRmERE

FEEEmM L™
P e R 75

(b) FEDIATPEIIRK &M T B

AFAE

RSB R EET1E (I ) R B 3R
EEEDREEEQFEES - eBE
BN FERAREEUSRTAANS
ZBREMBHRFBARAREHREIRIE

hEE -

AT H T & R FER L - WIREBE
REMEBEARETHE BEERRH
BATHERGENERREMHNE

Al o

EERRARENESREERERAR
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Available-for-sale
financial assets

Listed equity securities
held for trading

EH AT
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT| EBETFT| EETFT| EEFT

HKs$’000 HKS000 HK$’000 HKS000

622,094 477,114 622,094 477,114

6,485 1,942 224 159

628,579 479,056 622,318 477,273

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying value of trade receivables less impairment
losses (if any) and trade payables are assumed to
approximate their fair value. The fair value of financial
liabilities is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities of the Group approximate their
carrying values at the reporting date.
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INFORMATION

recognised during the year is as follows:

The amount of each significant category of revenue

2012 2011
BETFT BT T
HK$'000 HKS'000
B Turnover
FEREBUWA Gross insurance premiums 47,314 48,081
P HEIWA Proceeds from sale of properties 37,067 229,151
KEMEHESWA Rental income from investment properties 8,118 7,143
At ESRMEE Dividend income from available-for-sale
A% B A financial assets 4,387 17,230
96,886 301,605
R REZE Movement in unearned insurance premiums 299 6,211
BRESEHREBR Reinsurance premiums ceded and
B A PE Ak SR m HA reinsurers' share of movement in
REEH unearned insurance premiums (7,364) (8,597)
Hibr A Other revenues
ERB Management fees 120 120
SRITERA BULA Interest income from bank deposits 3,377 2,635
FIEEER FTARRE Dividend income from listed equity
B EMA securities held for trading 103 62
W [e] B 1 8532 AR Recovery of bad debts written off 35 8,852
HAh, Others 143 414
3,778 12,083
PNt Total revenues 93,599 311,302
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group identifies its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed internally by the chief operating decision-
makers which include the Executive Board Committee and
General Manager that are used to make strategic decisions,
allocate resources and assess performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments
held and investees. For business entities and investments
held, operating performance evaluation and resources
allocation are based on individual business activities
operated and investments held by the Group. For
investees, operating performance evaluation is based on
individual investee of the Group.

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

— Banking Investment: this segment includes the
Group's interest in XIB Group which conducts
banking business in Mainland China and Macao.

— Insurance: this segment includes the Group’s general
insurance business in Hong Kong and Macao.

—  Property Development and Investment: this segment
includes the development and sale of residential
properties and leasing of high quality office space in
Mainland China.

—  Strategic Investment: this segment represents the
Group's investment in A-Share of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (‘Huaneng”).

—  Others: this segment includes results of operations
not directly identified under other reportable
segments and head office activities. Head office is
also considered to be a segment as discrete financial
information is available for the head office activities.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision-makers monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and
services directly identifiable with individual segment
are reported directly under respective segments. All
direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped
under respective segments. Indirect costs and support
functions’ costs related to head office activities that
cannot be reasonably allocated to other segments,
products and services are grouped under head office.
Transactions between segments are priced based on
similar terms offered to or transacted with external parties.
Inter-segment income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation. The measure used for reporting segment
profit is “profit for the year”, i.e. profit after taxation of the
business entities, net income generated from investments
held and share of results of investees.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible and current
assets held by the business entities, net book value of
investments held and share of net assets of and loans to
investees. Segment liabilities include insurance liabilities,
creditors and accruals, income tax payable and deferred
tax liabilities attributable to individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments or directly
related to those segments. Dividend payable to equity
holders of the Company is treated as unallocated liabilities
in reporting segment assets and liabilities.
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ERRRRE
ke fh Proprty development RhaE (] ga

Bankingnvestment Insurance andinvestment Strategicinvestment Others Consoldated
m m n 0 m pillt 0 pull n pullE m nm
(2 Rstated) (2 Restated)
A | A | B | AErr | B | AR | B | At | B | AR | B | A
HSO | A0 R MO R HSOD | AKSOl § AU N SO | AR | MKStm | A0 | MESOI | AS

DB 31 December

BARHEAR The Company st - o | e | oemse | e | ocam | oo | s | omm | e | 1
FELRERER Ivestents oty conoledenties - | 1w - - - - - S T E I ST T T
REREN Inestmensn asocites 29 - - - - - - =0 s e | s | s
fgE Toalasets 96 | 1 oo | uee | oenan | e | e | e |oeone | 203 | 420 | 3306
FATRKEN TheConpaynd s - -0 oo | owm | o | me - 0 omes | oo | e | w
ek Totalliabilies - - 69,217 64780 | 249786 1589% - -1 1565 G043 §  AdAG59 | 35781
TEREARR Cotleendire ncureddun the e - - 181 11 2 B - - f 9 85 i3
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SRR N ERE R () 5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) b [w &R (b) Geographical information
TRENEBOAEEIRE %5’?@)5 The following table sets out the information about the
MRA RSB E - #E K geographical location of (i) the Group's revenues from
- REMERREHREZE %‘J?‘-ﬁ‘%ﬁ external customers and (ii) the Group's property, plant
ERal([HBEERBEE ] MEHE E’J and equipment, investment properties and investments in
Br o fgﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁliﬁz?mfﬂﬁﬁ&jf% jointly controlled entities and associates (“specified non-
REMEMEID - IBEERBEEME current assets”). The geographical location of customers is
WEARE D - W% ERRE ﬁﬁ&ﬁ based on the location at which the services were provided
MEREEERFEMEID - REH or the goods delivered. The geographical location of
PRI B8 S B A B Al LA $ﬁﬁﬁ:i‘|ﬂ$ﬂ the specified non-current assets is based on the physical
7 e location of the assets, in the case of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties and the location of
operations, in the case of investments in jointly controlled
entities and associates.
E FER 15 &&
Hong Kong Mainland China Macao Consolidated
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011
#H7E | 267 | #RTR | 2E 7k | BRER | 2R i | BREE | BRen
HK$'000 HKS000 | HKS'000 HKS000 | HKS'000 HKS000 | HKS'000 |  HKS'000
BZ12A31HLFE  VYearended31December
MREPKA Revenues from external
customers 34,490 35,100 46,365 250,428 16,031 16,077 96,886 301,605
M12A318 At31December
ARARHERR The Company and subsidiaries 65236 | 59950 | 90,323 | 82888 79 72| 155638 | 142910
REAXREHES Investments in jointly
controlled entities = = 64,901 | 1,963,657 = = 64,901 | 1,963,657
REBENT Investments in associates - — | 2,237,0m 13,879 - — | 2,237,0m 13,879
REFRBEE Specified non-current assets 65236 | 59950 | 2,392,295 | 2060424 79 72 | 2,457,610 | 2120446
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6 OTHER GAINS - NET

AR A PR S
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 2011
BETFT BT
HK$'000 HKS'000
BRATFEEAEBERYIRDY Fair value gains/(losses) on listed equity
EikEES AT E securities measured at fair value
Wz (E18) through profit or loss 792 (141)
KEMEEH A TE Fair value gains on revaluation of
e investment properties 13,737 27,840
HE—RERZEHEE Gain on partial disposal of interest in
o e B a jointly controlled entity
(FEF218(c)) (Note 18(c)) 108,135 —
— X HEREH E g R Gain on dilution of interest in a jointly
T SE A W s controlled entity (Note 18(d))
(¥ 18(d)) 284,928 —
— RN TR I Gain on dilution of interest in an associate
sER e (FEEE 19(b)) (Note 19(b)) 46,373 —
HEREMFE N Gain on disposal of investment properties — 157
HEAHEESREE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
U %5 (7EFE 20(b)) financial assets (Note 20(b)) 10,682 —
P& 5 U, (B518 ) F58 Net exchange gains/(losses) 480 (1,821)
465,127 26,035

TRBR T B AL W P R Sl 7

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

4% AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
2012 2011
BT T JBMEF o
HKS'000 HKS'000
IR FETEEERESE Net insurance claims incurred on

YHEE (a) insurance business (a) 15,972 11,978

REREBEENA2 Commission expenses incurred on
ZH (b) insurance business (b) 19,608 22,083
35,580 34,061
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 fRE %a’%?ié’]
=% (4

(a) PRERZEM5 A AR 1Y 5 1 1

H

FRENE 7

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(a) Net insurance claims incurred on insurance business

2012
EH BRE R
Gross Reinsurance Net
BT BEFT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
REFFERBLAE Current year claims and
£/ loss adjustment expenses 9,299 (17) 9,282
FFEREMERAE Additional cost/(run-off savings)
BRAMEINEAE, for prior years' claims and
(EEFEEEFR) loss adjustment expenses 7,621 (1,579) 6,042
EELEEREFHRE Increase in claims incurred
0 but not reported 1,318 385 1,703
AomEAEBR 2 TEETEEE Decrease in the expected cost of
XS, claims for unexpired risks (1,055) — (1,055)
17,183 (1,211) 15,972
2011
e BiRkE FEE
Gross Reinsurance Net
BT  BEFIT BETT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
REEEERBRAR Current year claims and
ZH loss adjustment expenses 11,426 (183) 11,243
T FERERIBRFE Additional cost for prior years'claims
B AR RRINKAR and loss adjustment expenses 366 46 412
E§§$1ﬂﬂi%$&ﬁ'\]%ﬂ§ Increase/(decrease) in claims
# 0, G incurred but not reported 3,378 (2,611) 767
R v B [ B ZTE FTEEE Decrease in the expected cost of
AR claims for unexpired risks (444) — (444)
14,726 (2,748) 11,978
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Tr B %@%Fié’] FMEF A &M 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED
4 (78 AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)
(b) PREREBEANMEEH (b) Commission expenses incurred on insurance business
2012 2011
BETF T B F T
HKS'000 HKS'000
ENEEMAESER Gross commissions paid and payable 20,209 22,760
B B U Less: Commissions received and
REEAFE receivable from reinsurers (601) (677)
ReBRFE Net commission expenses 19,608 22,083
& 2 1t 8 OPERATING PROFIT
2012 2011
BT T B F T
HKS'000 HKS'000
B R M BT AR Operating profit is stated after crediting
T5%IE - and charging the following:
A Crediting
ME e H R Net exchange gains 480 —
REYEDW N EIWFESE ©  Rentals received and receivable from
HBREEER investment properties less direct
outgoings 6,912 6,132
HIBR Charging
HEETEKYZE KA Cost of completed properties sold 27,464 165,323
bE 5B IR F 5 Net exchange losses — 1,821
e Depreciation 1,116 1,333
HEME - WS REE Loss on disposal of property, plant
518 and equipment 18 14
FBiE 2 EEXMAOED Operating lease rentals in respect of land
and buildings 442 815
Z BN & Auditor's remuneration 2,445 2,507
— BEFEE — provision for current year 2,145 2,300
— L ER LG 2EE — under provision for prior years — 57
— FHEIEE T — interim attestation work 300 150
BEE (;tE41(d) Management fee (Note 41(d)) 1,880 1,880
RIREFILZ (a) Retirement benefit costs (a) 715 787
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8

B S T A (48)

(a)

7£20004E 11 A30 B Al - NEE M
—IE R EH— K87 E H# KRG
BIDHER TBERERZEEERE
BEAI2M. RIksHE 2 EEH
AEBZEENHABE BB
ERESIRE - HEE 200011 8
308 RERAFEHBRIEE SR
Hl M A FE 2 5T ENEBI A S A 58
MRS E([RESE AT
BRREHL AEBREEHA
FHRFFE2HABEBAREER
A¥HzEns 2 tRHE -

AEBEARARBESTE 2 H®HK
(AN KBERZEEERNAS
B9 21 (200059 A30H & MA
MEB ZHRBAIAEELRAH
BoZN)SEEERBLKANE
DRZAUREELBEFEURS
HAB4000TER) - EEHE
BY 15 2 S XA &5 A1 B B AR KA T
21 B3 0% W 2 4t 3K B8 AT LA A VESRL
DAREB R FRE MR- RE B RRTE
SETE| 2K - B 2012F K 2011
F12A3MBYEERERNREA
2R WA o

ARTFEANBNEEMS @ ANRE
NEREETEAN S ERLES
Bt @ 2 00 % i BT R B B IR
Ketdl - AEBEZEEHFEZA
AL FEFEE L E A K
& 3 ™ BT MR 2 A E AR E
rARERERREMNEE -

8

OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

(a)

The Group contributed to a defined contribution
scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available to all
eligible Hong Kong employees prior to 30 November
2000. The assets of the scheme were held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. Contributions to the scheme by
the Group and employees were calculated at 15% of
the employees’ basic salary until 30 November 2000
when the DC Scheme was replaced by a mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance.

The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory and
voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each employee are
calculated at the higher of 10% (or 6% for employees
who joined after 30 September 2000) of the monthly
basic salary and 5% of the monthly total income,
subject to a maximum contributions of HK$4,000.
The Group’s contributions to the DC Scheme
and MPF Scheme can be reduced by the Group’s
voluntary contributions forfeited in relation to those
employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. At 31 December 2012 and
2011, there were no material unutilised forfeited
contributions.

For Mainland China employees, the Group
participates in the employee pension schemes
administered by the respective municipal
government in various locations in Mainland China
where the Group operates. The Group makes
monthly contributions calculated at a percentage
of the monthly payroll costs to these schemes and
the respective municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of the
employees of the Group.
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Al A 9  FINANCE COSTS
2012 2011
BT T B F T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
RITEFREZFBEZ Interest on bank loans and overdraft 1,228 4,754
—FERREEEER Interest on short term loan and advance
BFMF BTN from a substantial shareholder 11,259 6,190
12,487 10,944
B BENMEAREEERE Less: Amounts capitalised in properties
R YR T8 under development for sale — (3,723)
12,487 7,221

EARATIELN B 4 M T4 B 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

P <= 2 18 Al A L

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) THFME (a) Directors’ emoluments
& REE
R EAhER -
REYH =
Salaries,
EZWE  housing, other 2012
Directors’ allowancesand k]
fees benefitsinkind Total
BT T BETF T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKs’000
BiTES Executive Directors
SHEREE (£F) Mr. Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 60 — 60
Ttk sE (BER) Mr. Peng Jin Guang (Vice Chairman)' 32 — 32
TeRmtE (BlEfE)? Mr. Wang Hui Jin (Vice Chairman)? 28 — 28
REBRELE Mr. Zhu Xue Lun 60 — 60
FRELE Mr. Li Jin Hua 100 1,119 1,219
FEHTES Non-executive Director
REIBEA Mr. Zhang Rong Hui 60 517 577
BUFNTES Independent Non-executive Directors
EREALE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 250 — 250
LEmEE Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To 350 — 350
BREmEE Mr. So Hop Shing 250 — 250
1,190 1,636 2,826
1 R2012%F6 B18 BRI ATEERES 1 Appointed as Vice Chairman and Director on 18 June 2012
2 MR2012F6 B18HETEIEERES 2 Resigned as Vice Chairman and Director on 18 June 2012
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10

FRATH N B4 K A4 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES® EMOLUMENTS
Pl <2 2 A R N (48 AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)
(a) EHME () (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
e BE
SE=E ih=-1'00
REH =
Salaries,
EE@E  housing,other 2011
Directors’  allowancesand 4B
fees  benefitsinkind Total
BT B FT BT
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
BITES Executive Directors
SERTE (XE) Mr. Weng Ruo Tong (Chairman) 60 — 60
TeRts (BERE) Mr. Wang Hui Jin (Vice Chairman) 60 — 60
REMmAE Mr. Zhu Xue Lun 60 — 60
TIRELE Mr. Li Jin Hua 100 1,041 1,141
ERTES Non-executive Director
SRR Mr. Zhang Rong Hui' 32 299 331
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERBALE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 250 — 250
S EEELE Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To 350 — 350
BAEKEE Mr. So Hop Shing 250 — 250
1,162 1,340 2,502

1 MR2011E6 208 EEAES

1 Appointed as Director on 20 June 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The analysis in note (a) above does not include those
individuals who are not directors but whose emoluments
are among the five highest in the Group. Details of the

S emoluments paid to those individuals are as follows:
2012 2011
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
e - BE N EAERL Salaries, housing and other allowances,

KB = and benefits in kind 5,038 4,866
RRRE R8I R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 96 9
TEAT Bonus 5,730 5,730

10,864 10,692
< &= Emoluments Band 2012 2011
A# AZ

Number of Number of

Individuals Indlividuals

781,000,001 7T — &% 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 2 2
751,500,001 7T — /& 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1 1
781 2,500,001 7T — 8% 3,000,000 7T HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 — 1
8% 3,000,001 7L — B ¥ 3,500,000 7 HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 2 1

(c) MMEHANE

XNTEREBABZMESFBNT

(c) Senior management

Details of the emoluments paid to senior management are

as follows:

[ el Emoluments Band 2012 2011
A& A
Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

7B 500,001 7T — /& ¥ 1,000,000 JT HK$500,001 - HK$ 1,000,000 1 1
7B 151,000,001 7T — /&% 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 3 3
7B #5 2,500,001 7T — /5% 3,000,000 7T, HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 — 1
75 %5 3,000,001 7T — 788 3,500,000 7T, HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 2 1

iy
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11

EGEBRBERHZHENT

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

income statement represents:

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

2012 2011
(&5 Restated)
BT T BT
HKS’000 HKS'000
EHHE Current tax
BERENEH Hong Kong profits tax 316 328
H B A 1 3PS A Mainland China corporate income tax — 448
FP P b S AR (B R Mainland China land appreciation tax 139 3,078
AR R TR AT IS Mainland China withholding tax 26,471 1,723
JRPITEIE Macao taxation 20 126
26,946 5,703
AEEEEBRLY (B%) Under/(over) provision in prior years
R R A b 1 S FTIS A Mainland China corporate income tax 3,436 —
JRPIFHIR Macao taxation 1 (1)
3,437 (1)
EEH IR Deferred tax
TR EENESRER Relating to the origination and reversal
of temporary differences 1,679 15,668
g ] Income tax expense 32,062 21,370

BBFESHIIRBE NG ERERF
K R 16.5%(2011 FF : 16.5%) 12 # &
1# o

AR A O ZEFTIS R IR R A AT E
SR T i R K B R 259% (2011 £F : 25%) 51

A

E_o

B it £ 3R E AR IR i B IR E A R
B E30%E60%:TH  RYERHEMN
BFOR AR - B AR
- FHBENMEEER -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year.

Mainland China corporate income tax has been calculated
at the rate of 25% (2011: 25%) on the estimated taxable
profits for the year.

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including
costs of land use rights, development and construction
expenditures.
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

out of profits earned after 1 January 2008.

Mainland China withholding tax is levied at 10% on
dividend income received from investees incorporated in
Mainland China when these investees declared dividend

Taxation on Macao profits has been calculated on the

estimated taxable profits for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in Macao.

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Wn taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2012 2011
(&5 Restated)
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000

B A5 B A Profit before taxation 858,802 321,953
BT 16.5% 5T E 2§18 Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% 141,702 53,122
H ARt E TR R 2 Effect of different taxation rates in other

B tax jurisdictions 2,442 11,307
IERTZ WA Income not subject to taxation (146,630) (47,249)
TR 2 2 H Expenses not deductible for taxation

purposes 1,558 2,935

HEREYEZ R BRI Deferred tax liabilities released upon

MIEBE disposal of investment properties — (308)
KRR 18 & AT HUR Increase in unrecognised tax losses and

ZEIEM deductible temporary differences 3,596 3,308
EHATEAARER 2 18 Utilisation of tax losses previously not

E518 recognised (202) (4,801)
TFEEEEBERL (BZ) Under/(over) provision in prior years 3,437 (1
H Others (12) 1)

5,891 18,292

REBELEERENME Mainland China withholding tax on the

R s N RS AN EY Group's share of the capitalisation

A TEIRFT1S 51 of retained earnings by XIB

(FEE19(0)) (Note 19 (c)) 26,032 —
R B A b £ SE(E Mainland China land appreciation tax 139 3,078
Frisfisz Income tax expense 32,062 21,370
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12 A AW £ 1A A\ {ik s )

ARAREDRFEAREEA RN EE
B AT AR BB 75 ok ARt K 7S B

e — - —

37,878 & 7T(20114F : B 2,100&7T) °

12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company includes a profit of HK$378.78 million (2011:
HKS$21 million) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

13 &RE 13 DIVIDEND
2012 2011
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
REHABERRBARE Final dividend proposed after the
BT BB 410 reporting date of 4 HK cents
(20114 : B&al) (2011: 4 HK cents) per ordinary share 18,377 18,377
REHRBEBBREERIRE Special dividend proposed after the
TR AR 510 reporting date of 5 HK cents
(2011 4F : #) (2011: Nil) per ordinary share 22,971 —
41,348 18,377

P25 A &R FUR A E I BN AL E B
BRERAIIERRE - ERBREE20135F
123318 IEFEIIERE G M AR ©

14 A EF)

FRERNZFNZREEZE2012F12
B3BIEEEARAT R EE AEL
i A 7B #582,674 8 JL(20114F : B ¥
30,0583 8T - &KEY)) RFRNDBEITR
19 2 INkEF 1588 459,428,656 (2011 4F :
459,428,656 R st & -

AEBARFEBEFEHECHTA
BEEN LB AR EREFEN
FREERNEGRERBNER -

14

The dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31
December 2013.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2012 of HK$826,740,000
(2011: HK$300,583,000 as restated) and the weighted
average of 459,428,656 (2011: 459,428,656) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore diluted
earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share
for the years presented.
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) AEH (a) The Group
TR
HELHE MERR
TP g Bl
Leasehold FHE Fumiture,
land and BRET  fixtures, office HE
landuse  Building held  and computer Motor ke
rights  forownuse equipment vehicles Total
BT BT BETFT BT BETT
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
R201ME1A18 At 1 January 2011
XK Cost 29,504 9,153 8,515 3,226 50,398
ZMERAERSE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (12,484) (6,979) (6,985) (2,306) (28,754)
BRE#(E Net book value 17,020 2,174 1,530 920 21,644
HZ20mE Year ended
12ANALEE 31 December 2011
BRI FE Opening net book value 17,020 2174 1,530 920 21,644
B = Translation differences — — 5 13 18
R Additions — — 237 46 283
KEEHE Charge for the year (323) (293) (343) (374) (1333)
ERMELAHNERR Capitalised in properties under
i development for sale — — (1) = (1)
TAREREER Fair value gains credited to
RPN leasehold buildings
Wiz (o) revaluation reserve (c) — 1 - - 1
& \*Ef—jﬁ‘xﬁ Reclassify to investment
ME (o) properties (c) — (154) — — (154)
& Disposals = = (14) = (14)
HREETE Closing net book value 16,697 1,738 1414 605 20454
R2011F128318K  At31December 2011 and
2012F1A18 1 January 2012
AR Cost 29,504 9,004 8,637 3328 50,473
ZHMERRERE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (12,807) (7,266) (7,223) (2,723) (30,019)
BRE#E Net book value 16,697 1738 1414 605 20,454
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15 M€ ~ Has Sescfls (48)

(a) ASEH (HH)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(a) The Group (Continued)

BRI - %65 -
HETHEK WEER
T fERE BiERE
Leasehold B Fumniture,
land and BREF fixtures,office RE
landuse Building held and computer Motor i
rights  forown use equipment vehicles Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BZ012f Year ended
12A31HLEE 31 December 2012
BRI FE Opening net book value 16,697 1,738 1,414 605 20,454
R Additions — - 265 - 265
TEEME Charge for the year (324) (290) (300) (202) (1,116)
ENNEARBELE Reclassified as held for sale
(%29) (Note 29) - - (104) (32) (136)
HE Disposals - - (22) - (22)
MR BREFE Closing net book value 16,373 1,448 1,253 371 19,445
R2012F12A31H At 31 December 2012
KA Cost 29,504 9,004 8,384 2,000 48,892
ZAMERAERE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (13,131) (7,556) (7,131) (1,629) (29,447)
REFE Net book value 16,373 1,448 1,253 371 19,445
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
(b) AL H (b) The Company
FUNEES
METHR =
TR BlkRE
Leasehold FE Fumniture,
land and BEETF  fixtures,office AE
landuse  Buildingheld  and computer Motor BgE
rights ~ forown use equipment vehicles Total
BT BT BRI BT BT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
R2011E1A18 At 1 January 2011
KR Cost 4,053 1335 2818 2,000 10,206
ZHMERRESSE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (1,301) (598) (2,129) (1,421) (5,449)
BREFE Net book value 2752 737 689 579 4,757
HZ20ME Year ended
RANALEE 31 December 2011
HREE Opening net book value 2,752 737 689 579 4757
R Additions - - 79 — 79
KEEME Charge for the year (41) (36) (118) (116) (311)
TAREERFERL Fair value gains credited to
EEesDTE leasehold buildings
Wizt (c) revaluation reserve (c) = 11 = — 11
ENNEARE Reclassify to investment
ME (o) properties (c) — (154) — - (154)
HE Disposals — - (5) - (5)
HREmFE Closing net book value 2711 558 645 463 4377
M2011512A31A%  At31December 2011 and
2012617818 1 January 2012
KR Cost 4,053 1,186 2,849 2,000 10,088
ZHMERRESSE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (1,342) (628) (2,204) (1,537) (5,711)
BREFE Net book value 2711 558 645 463 4377
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(b) The Company (Continued)

BRI - %65 -
HELHER WEER
T fERE BiERE
Leasehold B Fumniture,
land and BREF fixtures,office RE
landuse Building held and computer Motor 5
rights  forown use equipment vehicles Total
BETT BEFT BETT BETT BETFT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BZ012f Year ended
12A31HLEE 31 December 2012
BRI FE Opening net book value 2,711 558 645 463 4,377
L Additions - - 16 - 16
TEEME Charge for the year (39) (34) (91) (92) (256)
i Disposals - — () — )
HRREFE Closing net book value 2,672 524 568 371 4,135
R2012512A31H At 31 December 2012
KA Cost 4,053 1,186 2,839 2,000 10,078
ZEERAESE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (1,381) (662) (2,271) (1,629) (5,943)
REFE Net book value 2,672 524 568 YA 4,135
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(0 URFERMHN—EXTERE (©

MER20MFHE - NEBEKZ
BUMAFERXEERNESE
MOBRREME AXHEER
FEMAFEENERATEKS

An owner-occupied car park located in Mainland
China had been rented out in 2011, the Group had
reclassified the fair value of the car park from owner-
occupied property to investment properties and
recognised the fair value gain in leasehold buildings
revaluation reserve.

(d) HETH R AENREF (d) The net book value of leasehold land and land use
BEANWET : rights is analysed as follows:
rEE b NN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT | EEFT| B¥Fr| EEFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EEBRFEELY Leases held in Hong Kong
50 F LA E Over 50 years 4,447 4,469 2,142 2,144
106 £ 504 Between 10 and 50 years 11,217 11,476 — —
FEEBAINEEFAL Leases held outside Hong Kong
50 F LA Over 50 years 179 185 — —
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 530 567 530 567
16,373 16,697 2,672 2,711

NEBENHEE + b K& £ i F B #E
B R AR A8 #2,950& J0(2011
F #9508 L) ©

The cost of the leasehold land and land use rights
of the Group was HK$29.5 million (2011: HK$29.5

million).
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16 HEYE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
rEH AAFE]
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT | EEFr| EB¥Fr| EFEFr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
NEE At fair value
R1A1H At 1st January 122,456 95,695 81,456 58,021
BYE - #EE R Reclassify from property,
REEF R plant and equipment
(¥ 15(0) (Note 15(c)) — 154 — 154
ARG Fair value gains 13,737 27,840 7,737 23,281
HE Disposal — (1,233) — —
136,193 122,456 89,193 81,456

AEBRARRNREY F D REF

The analysis of the Group’s and the Company'’s interests in

BT : investment properties at their net book value is as follows:
M AATF
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BEFT | EETT| E¥EFT| EETT
HKs'000 HKS'000 HKs'000 HKs'000
EEBRFERLD Leases held in Hong Kong
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 47,000 41,000 — —
TEEBAINEETLL) Leases held outside Hong Kong
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 89,193 81,456 89,193 81,456
136,193 122,456 89,193 81,456

REYEMBT BETGHRM  F—KF
BEEENEEEM AR A A MEE
#2012

MEETFHEMER AR
12 A31 B AFEEESH -

—XMBRARFENRFESE4,700

41—

Er(2011 4 : B 41005 T)H— I8
UREBHIREMENEERZOBDE
REEEIRRTE  URHAESHEN

BRAMTE -

The investment properties were revalued based on their
fair values as at 31 December 2012 by independent
professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited.

The title deeds in respect of an investment property in
Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$47 million (2011: HK$41
million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the custody of
the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong
pursuant to the relevant regulatory requirements.
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¥t J&§ 2 ] 17 SUBSIDIARIES
b /NG|
Company
2012 2011
BEF T BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
JEETMD - AR Unlisted shares, at cost 118,605 118,605
ERTHEBAR - AL Loans to subsidiaries, interest bearing 279,700 279,700
ERTHBRAR & Loans to subsidiaries, interest free 68,324 16,144
WEBARRR BB Amounts due from subsidiaries, interest free 204,256 194,468
552,280 490,312
670,885 608,917
R RE ET R Less: Impairment losses (117,552) (112,711)
553,333 496,206

BT HE A R E SRR E R R SR
NEARRET —EARNER - 5 TH
BLRANASEFIRETRESN X
BE  BRARTARKEMBEEZXHIAF
ME10EWEENKRTE o

UTHRERBFER20129412 83184
AEENXEE  BESABEEAFE
MHEB AR - BRBEHRBPIN FIFEZ
f&in B E B o

The loans to and amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured and are not repayable within the next twelve
months. The interest bearing loans to subsidiaries are
charged at a spread over Hong Kong Dollar prime rate, at a
spread over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or at fixed
rates of 10% per annum.

The following list contains the particulars of those
subsidiaries at 31 December 2012 which principally
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise
stated.
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Wt JE 2w (78 17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
R BRTR FKE
ik BRRAFHE FER
Place of Particulars  Group's TEEK
incorporation of issued and equity Principal
ARERB Name of company and operations paid up capital interest activities
HEEEAR Directly held
ZEIERBRAF Dorfine Development Limited BE RERES T 100% MERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
RERERE Fujian Minxin Investments i AR EFE AfEA 100% REER
BRAR MR Co,, Ltd. m&® BEIRET
BEWER
B8 630087T
The People’s  Registered capital Investment
Republic of China  of HK$300 million holding
Paid-in capital
of HK$63 million
BfE(RE)RE Min Xin (China) Investment EERZEHS 1RER1ET 100% REARR
BRAT Limited
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
AERERERAF Min Xin Insurance Company Bt 5,500 2% 100% R
Limited FRAEB 1T —RERES
Hong Kong 55 million shares Writing of general
of HK$1 each insurance business
RBBRAA Take Chance Company Limited BE BREREB T 100% MERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
BEBEERAR Thousand Limited e 1REREB 1T 100% REER
Hong Kong Tshare Investment
of HK$1 each holding
BRERERAT Welljet Development Limited BE REBREB T 100% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
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Wt B 2w (78 17 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
R ERTR X&E
meh BRRAHE FbER
Place of Particulars  Group's FTEEK
incorporation of issued and equity Principal
NGRS Name of company and operations paid up capital interest activities
MRS Indirectly held
BEMERRAR Min Xin Properties Limited B0 500 B} 100% REZR
BRB® 1T
Hong Kong 5 million shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
B (BN EXRE Minxin (Suzhou) Property hEEAREAE HZfER 100% MERE
BERAR QG Development Co,, Ltd, @¢® B2 BT RIHE
The People’s  Registered capital Property
Republic of China  of HK$200 million development
and sale

(1) WHBRRMYBRERLIEHREZH
KBEFH I EETEZ - KB QA
ZEEFENEAEBGRABRE L
0.01% R FAWEEBREAIAR

FHE £ -

(2) RHBAMKTREEL2INERE

B) ARAFA—RKEEZEMBAR - BE
(BHM)BEXERAERQA(TEEEH
MR ERAREMNDBR/FIELE

MEE (;EH29) -

(1)  The financial statements of this subsidiary are not
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The net assets of
this subsidiary represent approximately 0.01% of the
Group's consolidated totals and no turnover from external
customers was recorded by this subsidiary during the year.

(2)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises incorporated and
operated in Mainland China

(3)  Minxin (Suzhou) Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Minxin
Suzhou”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was reclassified as assets held for sale (Note 29)
at the reporting date.
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18 FL[A] 42 i B e 18 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

rE VNN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T | EB¥FL| BY¥TrT| BEFr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
JEETRRD - Unlisted investments,
LA at cost — — 205,800 205,800
BEXRT— % ﬁ Loan to ajointly
20 1 B (o controlled entity (b) 16,334 16,334 — —
FEIEEE /?TE Share of net assets 2,296,005 | 1,947,323 — —
2,312,339 1,963,657 205,800 205,800
HE DR (o) Partial disposal of
interest (c) (305,774) = (28,000) —
#EE R (d) Dilution of interest (d) 206,243 — — -
B DA E Reclassified to
UNCIIG)) associates (d) (2,147,907) — (177,800) —
WEBEG Total investments (a) 64,901 | 1,963,657 — 205,800
JELETRRD - Unlisted investments,
B at cost — 205,800
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L IR] i H i ()

18 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)
@ AEERILREZEHEBZERES (@) The Group's investments in jointly controlled entities
T : are analysed below:
EREE Hith g
XIB Group Others Total
BT BT BT
HKs’000 HKSs’000 HKS’000
R 201141 818 At 1 January 2011 1,574,218 75689 1,649,907
ME N =R Translation difference 54,824 1,798 56,622
FE(R BR 5 12 i A Share of profit after taxation
B 250 A1 g A Profit before taxation 352,689 5,350 358,039
Frisfi s H Income tax expense (88,607) (867) (89,474)
REEHHFHES Increase/(decrease) in
o, Crid) investment revaluation
reserve 2,209 (12,898) (10,689)
EEHE—RITB AR Share of reserves released
HERBEOHFES on disposal of a subsidiary — (748) (748)
72011412831 HK&  At31December 2011 and
201241 A1 H 1 January 2012 1,895,333 68,324 1,963,657
EHZERR Translation difference 21,556 (201) 21,355
FE(RBR T2 )m A Share of profit after taxation
PR AT Profit before taxation 511,551 3,855 515,406
FrigHi s B Income tax expense (123,627) (1,204) (124,831)
KEEHFEED Decrease in investment
Ve revaluation reserve (57,375) (5,873) (63,248)
HEZBDHEES (o) Partial disposal of interest (c) (305,774) — (305,774)
s (d) Dilution of interest (d) 206,243 — 206,243
B DA Z AR (d) Reclassified to associates (d) (2,147,907) —  (2,147,907)
R 2012512831 H At 31 December 2012 — 64,901 64,901

(b)

Ko B[R TE & R o

HERRAEE
BeRE TEREER 28

&R HE

(b) The loan represented the Group's investments in that
jointly controlled entity and was unsecured, interest

free and had no fixed repayment terms.
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18 FL[E] = i B A (48)

()

MR2011E8H 128 » RAQ A E—
BYFE=H BEARBERSE
EEREERARIEARDIIVE
EmR(HESEE]D Bt &
ARABKEREZREBLEE W
BERFERGREEREREBGLE
SR 5% IR A RO RR A (TR RE]) -
KRB A AR 320,688,000 T (FE
#4975 5 398,872,000 7T ) ([ B 1))
REHREZE201MF12A8318 1k
FEATEKEZERF 2R
FEMH B &R G F m F (20 F ) 2 50%
HKE(RE2D 2 FA([KRED -
HHMERREBASTFEEELLR
AFEBEE AIRE2BEET -
BIEERE Z2011F12H31H
HFEEEZER  RE24005
A R #14,758,000 7T (5 B 40748 #&
18,356,000 7T ) °

FIEMRBNLMEEERFTRNE
B Bt - BEEIEMR2012F 11
B SERK o #&E 5T A [0 A% 4 FE (h &9
INENERESREEERREE
SHE 3564 BT AEER
FRHFE—AMREREREZLD
BH108148 L (FEE6) - A5EE
R GRERGEREERES
THRREHESREARFBESERY
116,700 B T H B E IR B %
F o

18 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

(©)

On 12 August 2011, the Company and an
independent third party, Fujian Provincial
Communication Transportation Group Co., Ltd.
(“Purchaser”) entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement (“Disposal”), pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase 5%
equity interest in XIB (“Equity Interest”) at aggregate
("Consideration”) of RMB320,688,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$398,872,000) (“Consideration
1”) and 50% of the audited consolidated net profit
(if any) of XIB as reflected in the statutory audited
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2011
attributable to Equity Interest (“Consideration 2”),
provided that if XIB shall suffer a consolidated net
loss during such accounting year, Consideration
2 shall be deemed to be zero. According to the
audited accounts of XIB for the year ended 31
December 2011, Consideration 2 was approximately
RMB14,758,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$18,356,000).

All the relevant conditions precedent had been
satisfied during the year and the Disposal was
completed in November 2012. The Group recorded
an after-tax one-off gain on disposal of approximately
HKS$108.14 million (Note 6) during the year, taking
into account the release of exchange translation
reserve and investment revaluation reserve
attributable to the Equity Interest of approximately
HK$35.64 million. The Group also transferred directly
to retained earnings in total of approximately
HK$167 million from statutory reserve, general
reserve and capital reserve attributable to the Equity
Interest.
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R2012912 A31H  HESHER
RE# AR 335,446,000 7T (S (A
H7H 417,228,000 T ) DARIEE B
HEHOBETTALERFS 545
EABBHRAETEAR A KTF
BAEBEERENLE - B
I R2012912 A31H » "EE
REAMEWER XA AEKE S
RIFRIB L) B 41,723 87T °

MR2012F 128318 AEEE
BEFBHAMEREERERDNE
oL EEIR5% KA ED A
6 U 2 A FE AN AN R B IE BR N
RENTERABHERBEHARK
2,9208 T(ZE E 4 % ¥3,6328
L) e BHEMR2013F2 ARAR
A EHBBZENTR o

R2012F 118 BESRERAE=F
BITHRMOABERERA(E—
HIR &R |) - BEURQR) AT
ERMRER3.75% HEETL
20.71% ° E It + NEE R F Rk
SESE NS X B ¥ 28,493 8 T (5
2e6)  UWIIREAEEEZ2012
F11H30B IENERETEER X
ERIRIE BB M S RELERR G
HZE2012F11 A30H IEH4%RA8
BERGTE - AEBRKHER
B PSR A B SE 2 49 20.71% FE(E A9
EERES TRRBESRER
HFEEA LY EE36873BTLH
BB OREEF -

18 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)

The Consideration for the Disposal of approximately
RMB335,446,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$417,228,000) was placed in the Escrow Account at
31 December 2012 in accordance with the requirement
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement pending the
determination of tax payable by the tax bureau and
the approvals by the relevant governing authorities in
Mainland China. Accordingly, the Group has recorded
a receivable from the Purchaser of approximately
HK$417.23 million in other debtors at 31 December
2012.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has recognised a
withholding tax payable for the gain on the disposal
of 5% equity interest in XIB of approximately
RMB29.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$36.32 million) according to the determination
of tax bureau in Fujian Province, Mainland China in
current income tax payable. The tax payable was fully
settled by the Purchaser on behalf of the Company in
February 2013.

In November 2012, XIB has issued new shares to third
parties to enlarge its share capital (“First Share Issue”)
which resulted in the dilution of the Company’s
shareholding in XIB from 31.75% to approximately
20.71%. Accordingly, the Group recorded a gain on
dilution of approximately HK$284.93 million (Note 6)
during the year based on the consolidated financial
information of the Group for the period ended 30
November 2012 and the consolidated financial
information of XIB prepared in accordance with the
HKFRSs for the period ended 30 November 2012. The
Group also transferred directly to retained earnings
in total of approximately HK$368.73 million from
statutory reserve, general reserve and capital reserve
attributable to the dilution of the shareholding in XIB
to approximately 20.71%.
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AAREBEFBEMBERD
2071%BHENERSTREH
B REARRRBREERHHE
EEsE BNHEREERNY
ZhH @At - ARAGERAE
mERRAEHERBET S E A
ENR) WERE B BERELE
E‘JL/(TEE&‘%»: /f)\ﬁﬁ

AT RER SR 20124912 A 31 Elﬂ
AEENEENEEFEATENH
PR R o itk R %IJE%;‘??%?Fim“
m °

18 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

The Company has evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its approximately
20.71% shareholding in XIB and considered that
the Company has ceased to have joint control
over XIB but still has significant influence over
XIB. Accordingly, the Company’s interest in XIB
was reclassified from jointly controlled entity to
associate and accounted for using equity method in
accordance with the HKFRSs.

The following list contains the particulars of the jointly
controlled entity at 31 December 2012 which principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. This jointly
controlled entity is an unlisted corporate.

K ERTR  AKEW
Rews BRREAFEE  ANER
Place of Particulars Group's TEEHR
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
HEZHERER Name of jointly controlled entities ~  and operations  paid up capital interest  activities
BEEE Indirectly held
HEEEREEBR Min Faith Investments Limited " BR 1008% 40% REER
GlRE®E 1T
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
(1 HEAZEHEEBOSE M BHREILIE (1)  The consolidated financial statements of this jointly controlled

Hﬂ%&i%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%& o &
it XEIEHIE R 2 EEFE MR
Am A DB NG AEBEIEERE L
1.7% }2.0.3% ©

entity are not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The
aggregate net assets and profit before taxation attributable
to this jointly controlled entity represent approximately 1.7%
and 0.3% respectively of the Group's consolidated totals.
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18 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)

The financial information of the Group'’s jointly controlled
entities extracted from their financial statements prepared

JRBIFF 4R 6l 2 B S Sk in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in their place of incorporation is as follows:
FEEELER
EREE Hit Group’s
XIB Group Others attributable interests
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

ARETFT | AREFT BETT | BETr| E¥Tn BEFT
RMB’000 RMB000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$’000 HKS 000
BE Assets — | 105,095,899 155,702 172,026 62,281 | 47,729,274
8fE Liabilities — | (101,214,666 (6,952) (11,141) (2,781)| (45,904,801)
BEFE Net assets — 3,881,233 148,750 160,885 59,500 1,824/473
WA Income 7,099,397 4448117 50,529 64,500 | 3,231,241 1,998,454
i Expenses (6,244,345)|  (3,857,786) (44,728) (55002)| (2,842,184)| (1,732,854
BRBIBEF]  Profit after taxation 855,052 590,331 5,801 9,498 389,057 265,600

R2012F 11 A ARARIBERNIEE
BHEREREREFT > ERBE AT
A = B 7 45 [2 R A0 AR B FR 31.75% 15 8
SEE4720.71% o EIREE KL 20124F 12
A3AMEERABEYKERNTRE
1927 » FiZFHBART HIEE
B AEREBEE20129F11 A30H I1E
11 {E AR EHLE -

In November 2012, the Company reclassified the
investment in XIB from jointly controlled entity to associate
to reflect the dilution of the shareholding in XIB from
31.75% to approximately 20.71%. The financial information
on assets and liabilities of XIB Group as at 31 December
2012 is presented in Note 19 and the financial information
on income and expenses of XIB Group presented above is
the operating results of XIB Group for the eleven months
ended 30 November 2012.
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19 M4/ H] 19 ASSOCIATES
AEE ¥ NG
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BEFT BT BT BEFTT
HKs'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
JFELETRRAD  HRAKAR Unlisted investments, at cost — — 10,746 10,746
R EEFE Share of net assets 89,164 13,879 - —
BEREHEREHNHME  Reclassified from jointly controlled
(;F%18) entities (Note 18) 2,147,907 — 177,800 —
WEBE @) Total investments (a) 2,237,071 13,879 188,546 10,746
LT - BHEA Unlisted investments, at cost 188,546 10,746 188,546 10,746

(@) AKEBERBEARIKESDITN (@) The Group's investments in associates are analysed
T below:
EREE Hft ok
XIB Group Others Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT
HKS$000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R2011%1818 At1 January 2011 — 11,654 11,654
R =R Translation difference — 576 576
PGB 1R R Share of profit after taxation
BRI AR A Profit before taxation — 1,771 1771
st Income tax expense - (122) (122)
R201ME12A31BR At 31 December 2011 and
20121 A1H 1 January 2012 = 13,879 13,879
BHREH RS Reclassified from jointly controlled
HE(FE118) entities (Note 18) 2,147,907 — 2,147,907
5 =5 Translation difference (2,313) 110 (2,203)
FEGBRT R R Share of profit after taxation
BR A AT Profit before taxation 43,699 255 43,954
Fris s Income tax expense (5,776) (99) (5,875)
RESMhMEES Increase in investment revaluation
0 reserve 7,301 - 7,301
B8R () Dilution of interest (b) 32,108 - 32,108
M2012%512A31H At 31 December 2012 2,222,926 14,145 2,237,071
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M2012412 318 » ERD 7K
ME=ZFRITHTROBRBRER
AN(FE_HEEER]) » ABK
A A) P 5 28R M AR #E AR 4920.71%
W E E 4918.7739% © It - A
EERFAKSEBERZH B
46378 t(7EEe6) @ L IIREAR
EEHZE2012F 12 A31BIEFE
MR AMBERRERBREEE
MR ELERRGI B E2012F 12
A31BIEFEMNGEVBEERE
B o N5 B[R B S 2 R A9 AR B 1
EE T 49 18.7739% (1 B9 % TE 7
EEREeREARES
HA)B 9,642 BT HIERERIR
g ) o

/H: EH> i

BE O> 2 2

Jsy

Bl

ARRIEERTKE _HHEE
e BEFBEMBERLY
18.7739% AR iR E A SRR IE /S
o RBRNRBBEBYHERD
MBEREBEARBETEEATE
NHEEN - Bt - ARERBE
IRBEBW D EARR AN S
NAE - MEMTREERAE RS
BiRREBY RS ER AR
SEHEAAR -

ERDR2012F 12 AR AREE
RAEERRHBBRAF - BRI
PEANRE  ERKESE
20124F 11 A 30 BRRZEF LA
R¥1267 8T (ZELE®15.77
BoL)EAR{  WHR2012%12 A
BZBEARZTEARERN - K
EEBEGEERNERN RS &
F 4B ¥ 32,676 88 TLiC A AR & 1
R HRNEAFEBEEA - BT
FERHEBNR S LLEARL
BRAEKERS TRRE - Bt 5t
EIE 2008 5 1 A 1 B 12 BRELAYF
BRENRE @ IINEIREEZBER
B D IR BN 10% ) FEIR FT 5
o EItk > 2012512 A318 -
7N £ B B 5 e A 2N HA AR I8 BR A T
RIEMNTERAERAARE 2,093
B (SELBE260387T) °

19 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

On 31 December 2012, XIB has completed the issuance
of new shares to third parties to further enlarge its
share capital (“Second Share Issue”), resulting in the
dilution of the Company’s shareholding in XIB from
approximately 20.71% to approximately 18.7739%.
Accordingly, the Group recorded a gain on dilution of
approximately HK$46.37 million (Note 6) during the
year based on the consolidated financial information of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
the consolidated financial information of XIB prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs for the year ended 31
December 2012. The Group also transferred directly to
retained earnings in total of approximately HK$96.42
million from statutory reserve, general reserve and
capital reserve attributable to the dilution of the
shareholding in XIB to approximately 18.7739%.

The Company has evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its approximately
18.7739% shareholding in XIB upon completion
of the Second Share Issue and considered that the
Company continues to have the ability to exercise
significant influence over the financial and operating
policy decisions of XIB. Accordingly, the Company
considers that XIB will continue to be classified as
an associate of the Company and the Company’s
interest in XIB will continue to be accounted for
using equity method in accordance with the HKFRSs.

XIB had changed from a limited liability company
to a joint-stock limited company in December 2012.
Pursuant to the requirement of Mainland China, XIB
had capitalised its retained earnings at 30 November
2012 of approximately RMB1,267 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,577 million) and transferred
such amount to capital reserve in December 2012. The
Group's share of the capitalisation of retained earnings
by XIB of HK$326.76 million was credited to capital
reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. According to the applicable tax laws in Mainland
China, such capitalisation was deemed as dividend
payment to shareholders and a withholding tax of
10% on dividend payment for profits generated by XIB
after 1 January 2008 will be levied on foreign investors.
Therefore, the Group has recognised a withholding tax
payable of approximately RMB20.93 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$26.03 million) in current income
tax payable at 31 December 2012.
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19 WiEsa] (48)
REBRARANRELEEEBEHE
RERBRITERRERZH £ R
g HWEFERREAERES MR
THEERRNGEE41@0) °

(d)

UWTHER®RER2012412 831 B
AEEMEENEEGEATEMNBL
NEl o WEEREHHAIELTAT] -

19

(d)

ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Bank deposits placed by the Group and the Company
with associated financial institutions in the normal
course of business are included in cash and bank
balances (Note 41(a)).

The following list contains the particulars of those
associates at 31 December 2012 which principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. All of these entities are
unlisted corporates.

R ERTR AKEH
R HERAFEE BUER
Place of Particulars  Group's TEEHR
incorporation ofissuedand effective Principal
BENTEH Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERA Directly held
BB RT - Xiamen International Bank, AR EAE HMEAR  187739%  RITRREER
REKBAR and its subsidiaries AE#180,780 87T
The People’s  Registered capital of Banking and
Republic of China RMB1,807.8 million investment holding
EFEIRERTT Luso International P 950,000 ik =FM  18.7739% ;1T
Banking Limited JBPI 1,000 7T
Macao 950,000 shares of Banking
MOP1,000 each
EFBBREE Xiamen International B 180 18.7739% REER
BRAR Investment Limited FRAEE T
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
BREERMAERR  FujianHua Yuan City I AR AME RGP 25% AKRAIR
BRHBBLDED Construction Environment AR 4207 8T R IE RS
Protection Co., Ltd.
The People’s Registered capital Sewage and
Republic of China  of RMB42.67 million waste treatment
services
(1) WEBEARNGEMERRIIELE (1)  The consolidated financial statements of this associate are

FBOK B R AT E AT EZ o B(G UL
B N Al 2 BEFE R R B ADG R 7
ABMEAREE LGS B Z04% "D
0.1% °

not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The aggregate
net assets and profit before taxation attributable to this
associate represent approximately 0.4% and less than 0.1%
respectively of the Group's consolidated totals.
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19 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

THMBEMTIREE AEENEE R

AIRIEE

P bl 2 FE IS ER K

BRI AR RA

The financial information of the Group’s associates
extracted from their financial statements prepared in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in their place of incorporation is as follows:

FEEELER
EREE Hity Group's
XIB Group Others attributable interests
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
ANRETT | \RETFT | AR%STT | ARETFT BEFT | EEFT
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 HK$’000 HKS 000
BE Assets 206,564,566 — 93,489 97,919 | 48,263,914 23,086
afE Liabilities (197,360,998) — (42,079) (32,266)| (46,098,805) (7,607)
EEFE Net assets 9,203,568 - 51,410 65653 | 2,165,109 15,479
WA Income 929,254 — 18,283 19,202 245,144 6,023
S Expenses (782,147) - (17,047) (18,871) (206,849) (4,374)
BB EERN  Profit after taxation 147,107 — 1,236 331 38,295 1,649

EIREBER2012F12 A3 BNEER
BEMBERNERY - L 25/
A&EZMM“E%JEE%E%@EMOQ
F12 AMKEER

The financial information on assets and liabilities of XIB
Group as at 31 December 2012 is presented above and
the financial information on income and expenses of XIB
Group presented above is the operating results of XIB

Group for December 2012.
20 At H S RNE E 20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
AEE AT
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BEFT| B¥Fr| BE¥FrT| EETF
HK$'000 HKS'000 |  HK$'000 HKS'000
NFE At fair value
m1A18 At 1 January 477,114 488,313 477,114 488,313
MR E B #E Fair value gain/(loss)
k- nl AN recognised in investment
@Hﬁz 5/ (E8) revaluation reserve 161,454 (11,199) 161,454 (11,199)
HE (b Disposal (b) (16,474) — (16,474) —
R12A318 At 31 December 622,094 477,114 622,094 477,114
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20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

The analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s available-

BREEITAT for-sale equity securities at their carrying value is as
follows:
rEH FNNE
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BYFrT | EEFrT| EB¥Fr| EEFT
HKSs'000 HKS'000 HKSs'000 HKS'000
R EEESELZ ST Equity securities listed on the
+FTHAZH#EZE S Shanghai Stock Exchange 622,094 477,114 622,094 477,114

MN2012%12 8318 » Z"EEEFHE 5

The Group held the following available-for-sale equity

Al ERE RS A securities as at 31 December 2012:
at it B TEXK FEENENER
Place of Principal Group's
AR EH Company name incorporation activities effective interest
ERHRE NG Huaneng Power International, R AREA BBENHEE N 0.5%
BRAR(#E]) Inc. (“Huaneng’) (46,9952 fRARR)
The People’s ~ Generation and sale (approximately
Republic of China of electric power  69.95 million A-Share)

(b)

FEAEMNT RIERTHE B
DRI 2007 E R 2012F L EEH
AAa|HEEEARABRENE
FREMR - At AEBERBHR
Hih2mk S AER  TERE
BB ESESHREESRIAR
ST AT ESESIRBETIBES -

RER RRABRLEEEHERS
Fri&E#205 ERERAR - KB
FEHOARE14298 T(HEEY
B, 7428 0) ¢ & ET AR D Z
EEHERDEEZANEEE
HRERGBESANERNRFTAFES
Big - AEEHESHELSE RS

e —

#4788 1,068 B L (7E26) ©

(a)

The tax bureau in Fuzhou and Beijing, Mainland
China had issued certificates of tax exemption for the
gain from the disposal of A-Share of Huaneng by the
Company in 2007 and 2012 respectively. Accordingly,
the Group has not provided any tax provision against
the fair value movements recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the investment revaluation reserve.

During the year, the Company has sold
approximately 2.05 million A-Share of Huaneng on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange for a net consideration
of approximately RMB14.29 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$17.42 million) and the Group
has recorded an after-tax gain on disposal of
approximately HK$10.68 million (Note 6), taking
into account the release of accumulated fair value
changes attributable to the shares disposed of
previously recognised in investment revaluation
reserve.
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b 1 B B R W 21 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE
rE
Group
2012 2011
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HKS'000
FEIER EEBENE Within normal operating cycle
mENEE included in current assets
T AR Land use rights — 347,653
BENARERNMEAXS Construction costs and
capitalised expenditures — 291,215
BEKRAERE Borrowing costs capitalised = 19,300
— 658,168
AR BE AN B EYZE Transferred to completed properties
held for sale — (658,168)

201 FEEBEREMMEMEEKR A FER
ENMEMREER656F °

01 EFHEEERERFYWEMRFEA
i o

B 7% Bt B 2
EEKBEEEWEMRPREAM - R

ERARETOBERBELHENEE
(FE%29) °

22

The capitalisation rate used to determine the net
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation in 2011 was
6.56%.

The properties under development for sale in 2011 were
located in Mainland China.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE

The completed properties held for sale are located in
Mainland China and were reclassified as assets held for sale
(Note 29) at the reporting date.
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23 PRAEEAS HAS

23 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

AEH

Group
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
»1A1H At 1 January 12,637 15,756
FRIE N Increase during the year 9,714 10,892
FER Rk Release during the year (11,540) (14,011)
M12H31H At 31 December 10,811 12,637

24 PREgENGK 24 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE
AEE
Group
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS000
KB B RFNTA Due from agents, brokers and

e intermediates 10,261 10,912
BOBEEE Less: Impairment losses (28) —
10,233 10,912
BHFEARK Due from contract holders 40 8
BIRBR AR Due from reinsurers 2 165
10,275 11,085

R B2 FE R K EB 73 2 4

BAPR — A% AR 90

RENORTE - REBREUKRZ EE K
R BREECHFEAF=FLAER)H

BREEABIRE e

The credit period for the majority of insurance receivable
normally ranges from 90 to 120 days. The credit terms
of insurance receivable, including whether guarantees
from third parties are required, are determined by senior

management.
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24 {REgREWCK (4]) 24 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE (Continued)
R2012%F 12 A31 8 ' REERZAER At 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis of insurance
BAOMREZERH)AT - receivable by invoice date was as follows:

rEE
Group
2012 2011
B TFT BT
HKS$’000 HKS'000
30HA Within 30 days 3,186 3,516
31260 H 31-60 days 3,233 2,609
61290H 61-90 days 1,911 2,354
#Bi@ 90 H Over 90 days 1,945 2,606
10,275 11,085
R2012%12 A31H ' EBHERRE At 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis of the past due
ARG B RIBREE DATIOT but not impaired insurance receivable was as follows:
rEH
Group
2012 2011
BYFT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS000
90 HIA Within 90 days 2,726 3,737
8@ 90 H Over 90 days 69 184
2,795 3,921

169



¥

170

1
L

k.

b

YRR, T

ﬁf’%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ? Mix Xin Holdings L|m|te?t;1 |'}'

A BB W R R R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25

26

PR & 25 REINSURANCE ASSETS
KEH
Group
2012 2011
BT T BT
HKS'000 HKS'000
BREBEAEGERREE Reinsurers' share of insurance
(7% 30) liabilities (Note 30) 6,189 4,936
BREBAXNAIEERSREHE M The amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims

E’JEA’ EREMFIAY RN BRI EENE
R o 2 I A AR E U R (FEE 24)

already paid by the Group on the contracts that are
reinsured are not recognised in the reinsurance assets.

A o They are included in insurance receivable (Note 24).
TN 26 PREPAID TAXES
AEHE
Group
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS'000
B EER Prepaid corporate income tax — 240
TEAS R (E R Prepaid land appreciation tax 5,553 4,695
SEENEE Prepaid business tax 1,194 1,453
AR EME Prepaid other taxes 140 171
O EARELE Reclassified as held for sale
(71 29) (Note 29) (6,887) —
= 6,559

BN EEMEN - LHIEER - EXHR
REMKHESEEFTBEANLOHELEY
FWBWAEEFIZETEOLLFE -

properties held for sale in Mainland China.

Prepaid corporate income tax, land appreciation tax,
business tax and other taxes are calculated based on
certain percentage of cash received from pre-sale of
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27 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

G THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AEHE VNN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETFT| BT EBEFT| FEFT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FIEEEIRAEE S+ Equity securities held for
REE L™ trading, listed in Hong Kong
— EME — at market value 6,485 1,942 224 159
B4 MR IT 87 28 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

R E RBITEFERIERAEE KRR
PAEERPEAMSE TRITZEX
HARM3,801 B (ZEL B 4,727
BT)RARKE2044 8 T(ZELH B
25428 T )(2011F : D RH AR
4,094 BTN ARE 735 87T - SEAE
¥ 5,051 B MBEE 907 B L) ©

MR2012F 12 A31H > AERAH—FRE
E2ENBARRENRE RRITER
PARE12128 L (ZEEL B 1,508
BILIEEMHEARBIELE - YRER
BUMBEHRRERANIN B ERFIELHERN
BE(GEE29) -

RIEEBSRREEERE BT THE
EN—ZXMBRATEKEEH AT
78 ¥ 1,600 & (2011 4 : 75 % 1,600
BETI)ZESBRBIRITER - ZMBA
B LRI 749 B T (S E QB
k728 B 7T ) (2011 4F : 4)BPI¥ 604 8
TC 0 ZEA) B8 BT ) ZIRITER
NFABRPKRBEBEH A ZET
MRIE °

Included in cash and bank balances are deposits
of approximately RMB38.01 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$47.27 million) and RMB20.44
million (equivalent to approximately HK$25.42 million)
respectively placed with certain banks in Mainland China
by the Group and the Company (2011: approximately
RMB40.94 million and RMB7.35 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$50.51 million and HK$9.07 million
respectively).

At 31 December 2012, the cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB12.12 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$15.08 million) held by an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary in Mainland China had
been reclassified as held for sale and included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as assets
classified as held for sale (Note 29).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary
maintains at all times a portion of its funds, being not
less than HK$16 million (2011: HKS16 million), in bank
deposits. That subsidiary has also maintained a bank
deposit of approximately MOP7.49 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$7.28 million) (2011: approximately
MOP6.04 million, equivalent to approximately HK$5.86
million) for fulfilling certain requirements under the Macao
Insurance Ordinance.
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28

29

Bl KaRATHiAF (4])

BEAEE —ZRKBARABEEFTRH
RN EE T ERISZBERMA
ATHRITHEMNER - R2012F 128
318 - ZMBARTFEROARK1328
T(ZEEDBE 1648 7T)(2011F : 4
AR 306 8T FELEK3I78ETT)
MESNETEIRITERR - (EARZLEYE
BEXREBEERIZBERNRES (G2
37) c EEREBEREEDEERBH
IS %R IR T 5 BIRTTR
|§ff} °

BRI E A INEEIRIEFIMNEE » A
RA—FERBOVARB 14328 L(ZFE
WEB1781BT)NES TR F
A —KIRTT - WERFEBEEERED
o - BERGREPBEHRERTIER - A
BB S E L R A A FE D E R
oo HIRTTHETARNRTRNFERTEL
205 B AR ZERE AR AT WER R B F (B -

BRAFOEEPBRAMRAEE— R AR -

DR ATHELERNEE

MR2012F 128 ARAIEZ &
MEMESRAR(RAA—KHEES
ENBARREBERFRERGEEHMNN
100% A ([ D HE TFTRBILE
=R o

MN20135 18148 AEMHMEAEAQ
RIFIY—HBEGKHEERZ  URE
B AR 227,884,000 7T ( Z (B 47 &
283,442,000 7T ) ([ X E 1) B E A& #& ([ H
EEIE|)FBYFE=HBHABIRNDE
BRAR([EM]) °

28

29

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

According to the guarantees provided by a subsidiary of
the Group in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to certain purchasers of that subsidiary’s
properties in Mainland China, at 31 December 2012,
that subsidiary has placed deposits of approximately
RMB1.32 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.64
million) (2011: approximately RMB3.06 million, equivalent
to approximately HK$3.78 million) at designated bank
accounts for potential default in payment of mortgage
loans advanced to those property purchasers (Note 37).
Such deposits will only be released when those property
purchasers obtain the “property title certificate” which is
then pledged to the relevant banks.

Pursuant to the rules of foreign exchange control
regulations in Mainland China, a sum of approximately
RMB14.32 million (equivalent to approximately HK$17.81
million) was placed with a bank in Mainland China by
the Company pending the approval from the relevant
governing authorities. The application procedures for the
repatriation of funds out of Mainland China are still being
processed up to the date of issue of these consolidated
financial statements. The bank balance represented the
net proceeds received from the sale of approximately 2.05
million A-Share of Huaneng during the year and was not
available for general use in Mainland China.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

In December 2012, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the proposal initiated by the board of Min Xin
Properties Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, to dispose of its 100% equity interest in
Minxin Suzhou (“Equity Interest”) to an independent third

party.

On 14 January 2013, Min Xin Properties Limited entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement for
the sale of the Equity Interest (“Disposal”) to Citichamp
Dartong Co., Ltd. (“Citichamp”), an independent third party
at a cash consideration of RMB227,884,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$283,442,000) (“Consideration”).
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RIELAEE  BHRBRENREETIR
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11,460 B 7T ) (Mi5E42(b)) 18 * R 2R
BESAEMBERARABL 25 NEE
HMNETEEEMBENT :

29 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE (Continued)

Based on the above facts, the Company considered that
the Equity Interest met the criteria to classify as held for
sale because the carrying amount is recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through a
continuing use and the Equity Interest is available for sale
in its present condition.

Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of Minxin Suzhou
were reclassified as held for sale at the reporting date. The
major classes of assets and liabilities of Minxin Suzhou
after elimination of an advance due to the Company
of approximately RMB92.14 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$114.6 million) (Note 42(b)), which were
presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position at the reporting date, are as follows:

iE BT T
Note HK$’000
Y - B R Property, plant and equipment 15(a) 136
BREFTSIHEE Deferred income tax assets 35 2,488
EIRRHEHEME Completed properties held for sale 22 521,073
o fE Y BR X Other debtors 1,339
AR E Prepaid taxes 26 6,887
EMBEANRRIES Other prepayment and deposits 785
Re MIRTTHET Cash and bank balances 28 15,078
PTEABELENEE Assets classified as held for sale 547,786
HihETER M EETE B Other creditors and accruals 73,532
VIXHECBRFE] € Customer deposits from sale of properties 23,884
—FTERFERNBK Loan and advance from a substantial shareholder 34 111,942
HABEABEHENEE Liabilities associated with assets classified as
HRENEE held for sale 209,358
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30 fRBEG#) MK AR L E

30 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS
rEH
Group
2012 2011
BEFT B F T
HKS’000 HKS000
EX Gross
EE2ERRERBLARE Claims reported and loss adjustment
=95 expenses 15,394 12,873
BEABKRERRE Claims incurred but not reported 15,877 14,559
31,271 27,432
RimEARE Unearned premiums 26,183 26,482
Ao B R B Unexpired risks provision 566 1,621
RiETHEE B8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 58,020 55,535
BWRERBRARE Recoverable from reinsurers
EERRERBLAAE Claims reported and loss adjustment
& expenses (1,652) (95)
BEABREREE Claims incurred but not reported (3,887) (4,272)
(5,539) (4,367)
AmEARE Unearned premiums (650) (569)
BREBAEBGREBEE Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
BEE(FEE25) liabilities (Note 25) (6,189) (4,936)
FE Net
EERRERBRARE Claims reported and loss adjustment
£/ expenses 13,742 12,778
EBREARERRE Claims incurred but not reported 11,990 10,287
25,732 23,065
KmERE Unearned premiums 25,533 25,913
AN vk B 2 e 14 Unexpired risks provision 566 1,621
REEETHEE BHE Total insurance liabilities, net 51,831 50,599

E2RAEEE  BRABRBEALESR
A ERERZEFEETNEECHLE
HA AT (A48 BR N A (L R UK [ ) SRR

174

The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment
expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net of
expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.



. 1 i MLl e S
- T EEEr Lty o '.t-' W
!1—2 —ﬁ5$$ﬁ Annual Report 2012
P e

AR A PR S
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 PRBEA A S EIR B A E (4 30 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)
(a) PB4 O o e 2 ) s ) (a) Movement in claims and loss adjustment expenses
2012 011
E2 BRR R e | ARk it
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
BEfr  EEFR BETT Bt BETr B8
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HIS 000 HKS 000
E2H%E Notified claims 12,873 (95) 12,778 18218 (586) 17632
BELERER Incurred but not reported 14,559 (4272) 10,287 11,181 (1,661) 9520
R1A1A At 1 January 27432 (4,367) 23,065 29399 (2247) 27,152
FRLBEERMER Cashpaid for claims settled during the year (14,399) 39 (14,360) (17,138) 629 (16,509)
SEEM/(BY)  Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
BEERRR arising from current year claims 25,176 (3,904) 21,212 25,985 (4456) 21,529
TEELEER arising from prior year claims (6,938) 2,693 (4,245) (10814) 1707 9.107)
R128318 At31 December 31,271 (5,539) 25,732 27432 (4367) 23,065
RESH Notified claims 15,394 (1,652) 13,742 12873 (95) 12778
BRERRER Incurred but not reported 15,877 (3,887) 11,990 14559 (4272) 10,287
R128318 At31 December 31,271 (5,539) 25,732 277432 (4367) 23,065
(b) A 1A {5 22 Al 4 5 (b) Movement in provision for unearned premiums
2012 011
E2 BRR R e | Bl it
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
BEfr  EEFR BETT Bt BETr YT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HIS 000 HKS 000
R1A1A At 1 January 26,482 (569) 25913 32,693 (481) 32012
ERE Increase during the year 143 (680) 3733 B691 (568) 313
Ensk Release during the year (24712) 599 (24113) (2990) 480 (2942)
R128318 At31 December 26,183 (650) 25,533 26,482 (569) 25913
ﬂi}%ﬁﬂﬁ BEGBESANEEAREER Provision for unearned premiums represents the liabilities
WA EARIANERRREOEE - for short-term insurance contracts for which the Group’s

obligations are not expired at the reporting date.
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30

31

TR B & S AR B E (A

30 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(c) AT 10 S o YA < 5 ) (c) Movement in provision for unexpired risks
2012 2011

EX ) BRE 8 eS| AR i
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
BT BT BETn | F¥Tr BETFr BETFr
HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS000 HKS000
®W1A1R At 1 January 1,621 — 1,621 2,065 = 2,065
FN G Release diuring the year (1,055) — (1,055) (444) — (444)
R12H31H At 31 December 566 = 566 1,621 — 1,621
FRomER R R & B A= E T8 Bl & 5 B The provision for unexpired risk relates to the insurance

{E#RE H AR A IR B B2 R
BHAER -

(Y IREN

R2012F12 A31 8 @ &K
RO (REZEH)WT :

% & SR AR

contracts for which the Group expects to pay claims in
excess of the related provision for unearned premiums.

31 INSURANCE PAYABLE

At 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis of the insurance
payable by invoice date was as follows:

REHE

Group
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
308 Within 30 days 2,624 1,874
312 60H 31-60 days 1,116 1,047
61290 H 61-90 days 1,444 1,010
HBiE 90 H Over 90 days 877 1,772
6,061 5,703
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R2011F 128318 AEBEEERE
HEEREEEFREHDEMEAIESE
EEENENEENARETERLY
AR5 7238 T (BN BE7,0628
TC) e FATKBEKANETR - A&
ERBEEKAENER  R2012F
12ABERENBEXNAOARE
5316 BL(EEX B K 6,61287T) ' I
EHOBRBELE  EHFEEVBIKA
FANBESEAFIEHENEENRR
MEEGGEE29) -

SRAT K

F2010F « RRARIREBE —FKFEITH
B—ERRENBEEEES50008 TR
B FEEBEE1,0008TT c ZEREE
NEE—R2ENBAREANE A
MEEVEEERR  ZWHER2012F
12 A31 BRI FELBE 11228 7T
(2011 F : 4)78%1,16887T) °

HIRITE A BIREBIRITRERS
MMEZEE - R2012F12831BHE
BRENELE24E(2011F : 23FE) ©

32

O8]
(O8]

OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

At 31 December 2011, the Group has recognised the
construction costs payable and accruals of approximately
RMB57.23 million (equivalent to approximately HK$70.62
million) for properties held for sale based on project
progress measured by project management team of
the Group. Upon completion of the construction costs
audit during the year, the construction costs payable
of approximately RMB53.16 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$66.12 million) was recognised by the
Group based on the outcome of the construction costs
audit and reclassified as held for sale and included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as liabilities
associated with assets classified as held for sale (Note 29)
at 31 December 2012.

BANK BORROWINGS

In 2010, the Company obtained a revolving loan facility
of HK$50 million and an overdraft facility of HK$10
million from a bank in Hong Kong. These facilities were
secured by the self-use office building owned by a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value
of approximately HK$11.22 million at 31 December 2012
(2011: approximately HK$11.68 million).

The bank loan bore interest at a spread over Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate and the effective interest rate at 31
December 2012 was 2.4% per annum (2011: 2.3%).

The bank loan of HK$50 million under the revolving facility
is payable within three months after the drawdown date.
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K201 F6H  BEEHIMNERRDF —
XL S aEE - BERFI I8 E BERE
HRER(ERERD)  #Bit - ERIER
ARR—FBRF  BREERERESE
EEREARAF([EERESE]NE
T REMBEGEHMNERBEERE
EEHENZEERARKE 11,0008 7T
(HEHEE1343587) - BEBERAE
B RLERFHA12/EA © #2011
F6 24 st o

RAEERAEEM - P BREEFHE
10 E&HE o ptAIRTHBEER )N B8 iR
ERBEMBREN  TEEBR/ER
BEENBEESNKA  BEHMENU
FHMEHBERSTHEERSTRE -
AR 7R 52 31| R R 558 568 P b 2 2
EIE B RER - BHEMRTHR
RRETHAEREZEERTYREREN

BERBR -

MR2012F6 A198  EEKEEE -
HMEHMNEERIIYHETAR BE
TERARE,0008 T(ZEANBIE
11,1948 70) M E R HRER = 2013 F
6 H24H °

RER - MEZTHHARKINSE T
(ZFELHBE1,1268 70 ) (201145 : 4
AR® 496 ETT - FEKBK60587T)
BELABEERNER - B THARE
28 BT (FEABE3487T) (2011 F -
AR 28T FEABE34ETT)
HF B HR 2012912 A31 BEEAM
FEfTER X R FEET B A NET RSN - FINE
EENIHOAREINSET(ZED
BEE1,126 BT A E T RRERESE
(01 F : HARMK468E L' SEYD

4 —

578 BT ) ©

R2012F12 831 H @ it ER NI
ERAENGREEET D EAFEL
B WESKGBRARAY BED
HARBELENEERBNaE(TRE
29) °

34 LOAN AND ADVANCE FROM A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

In June 2011, Minxin Suzhou entered into an entrusted
loan agreement (“Agreement”) with XIB, an associated
financial institution of the Company, in which XIB acted
as lending agent to release the entrusted loan of RMB110
million (equivalent to approximately HK$134.35 million)
funded by Fujian Investment & Development Group Co.,
Ltd. (“FIDG"), a substantial shareholder of the Company.
According to the Agreement, the term for the entrusted
loan is twelve months from 24 June 2011.

The entrusted loan was unsecured and borne interest
at a fixed rate of 10% per annum. Such interest rate was
mutually agreed between Minxin Suzhou and FIDG after
considering the overall funding costs to FIDG, the best
interest rate of approximately 18% obtainable from
financial institutions by Minxin Suzhou and the fact that
local banks are unwilling to grant or extend construction
loan to property developers under the measures by the
Central Government to curb property prices.

On 19 June 2012, FIDG, Minxin Suzhou and XIB entered
into a supplemental agreement to extend the term of the
entrusted loan balance of RMB90 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$111.94 million) to 24 June 2013.

During the year, an interest expense of approximately
RMB9.15 million (equivalent to approximately HK$11.26
million) (2011: approximately RMB4.96 million, equivalent
to approximately HK$6.05 million) was recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Except for an
amount of approximately RMB0.28 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$0.34 million) (2011: approximately
RMBO0.28 million, equivalent to approximately HK$0.34
million) was accrued in other creditors and accruals as at
31 December 2012, interests of approximately RMB9.15
million (equivalent to approximately HK$11.26 million)
were paid by Minxin Suzhou to FIDG during the year
(2011: approximately RMB4.68 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$5.78 million).

At 31 December 2012, the balance of the above loan from
FIDG and related interest payable had been reclassified as
held for sale and included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale (Note 29).
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BEFGHEABEENDGRERER
BT 2 T 16.5%(2011 4F  16.5%)
AR B A b B T8 2 A 3K 259%(2011 4F -
25%)IEREEME - EBETEEFN A
ERMIBEEEHEZHHEAaEERE ™
EIEFTBIE R [B — B IS B8 3 [ — &
JERTRER « BIR SHIEEFTIS T & A
BRI AEE RS -

BIEFSHEE(AE) 2E8BHIT :

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation rate
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and 25%
(2011: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same taxation authority on the same taxable
entity.

The movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) is as follows:

AEE KA T
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
(E%| Restated)
BEFIT | EETFr| BEFT| FEFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
M1 A18 At 1 January 33,416 (17,736)] (32,866)]  (17,903)
e H =58 Translation differences 30 (10) — —
EEFEBERE Deferred income tax charged
kg 2 ERE to current year's income
P15 statement (1,679) (15,668) (5,106) (14,961)
KEHERESME  Deferred income tax charged
EaEil] to leasehold buildings
RIEFTISHL revaluation reserve — ) — )
BEFTSIHHEE Deferred income tax assets
B EARE reclassified as held for sale
HE (G 29) (Note 29) (2,488) — — —
M12H31H At 31 December (37,553) (33,416) (37,972) (32,866)

BEFTSHREE DR ERBHEAER
B REIB B A R FER TR R B IR LA
Y FIBERER - 122012412 A 31
B RNEBERERN T AEERKE
R U A B TR 18 498 & 2.93 B 7T (2011
F B 269 KES) 0 itk
FRIB I AR HA o

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefits through future taxable profits is probable. At
31 December 2012, the Group did not recognise tax losses
of approximately HK$293 million (2011: approximately
HK$269 million as restated) that can be carried forward
against future taxable income and have no expiry date.
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35 WRAEPTSFL (4)

35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

FRELEMSHEERABGE 2EH(HE The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
Bl —BHit & 2 AR K SH AT I T - (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:
AR AE Fir 1580 B 1R Deferred income tax liabilities
F58 N
Group Company
MEHERER MEREHER
REMRELR RENEER
Accelerated Accelerated
tax depreciation HERAZGE tax depreciation
and revaluation of Timing difference ot and revaluation of
investment properties in sales recognition Total investment properties
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011
(51| Restated) (E5] Restated)
BETT | BEfr | BEFr | AbTr | BEFr | FEFr | BETr | AETr
HK$'000 HKs'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
MA1H At 1 January 33,326 18,652 994 = 34,320 18,652 33,051 18,109
EiES Translation differences — — 10 ) 10 n - -
FEFEBRK  Chargedtocurrentyear's
il income statement 5,140 14672 252 983 5,392 15,655 5,082 14,940
EHEEEER  Chargedtoleasehold
e Mk buildings revaluation
reserve = 2 = = = 2 = 2
EHHMAHE  Redassified as held for sale
HE(E29) (Note 29) 18 - (1,256) - (1,238) - - -
R12A31H At 31 December 38,484 33,326 = 994 38,484 34,320 38,133 33,051
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IR AL FT 1B (48) 35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
PR LE P S B B Deferred income tax assets
158 AT
Group Company
HERBERBRE
BACKE
Timing difference in
EHER sales and related costs g g B8
Accrued expenses of sales recognition Tax losses Total Tax losses
2012 201 2012 201 2012 201 2012 201 2012 201
(E7 Restated) (7| Restated)
BRI | BETr | BEFL | A% | BEFx | A%Fr | BET | BETr | BEFL | A%
HKS000 |  HKS0O0 | HKSDOO §  HKSUOO | HKS©00 |  HKSUOD | HKSO00 §  HKSUOO | HKS©00 | HKSUOD
M A1A At 1 January 3) = - = (901) (916) (904) (916) (185) (206)
ERER Translation differences - - (40) - - ) (40) ) - =
HEERIBER  Charged/(credited)to current
s/ (25%) year's income statement (430) B (3686) - 403 16 (3713) 13 2% 2
ENDMARE  Reclassified as held forsale
HE(FEY) (Note 29) - - 3726 - - - 3,72 - - -
128318 At31December (433) 3) - - (498) (901) (931) (904) (161) (185)
EETABERBEEEMSHEEREGRE The following amounts, determined after appropriate
% THSBEFBMRARATIR offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities, are
shown in the statement of financial position:
RE ¥ NN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
(7% Restated)
BT | B¥For| EB¥TFrT| BEFrT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKSs'000 HKS'000
IEIEFTSFi & E  Deferred income tax assets
R 128 A 1% To be recovered after
W [e) 12 months 377 419 — —
B 12@ AR To be recovered within
U [8] 12 months 42 9 — _
419 428 —_ =
FELFTSTiBE  Deferred income tax liabilities
R 12 8 A 1% To be settled after
At 12 months (37,972) (32,866) (37,972) (32,866)
B 121@ AR To be settled within
At 12 months — (978) — —
Gro7a|  G3se| @roza|  G2se
(37,553) (33,416) (37,972) (32,866)
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36

A it 36 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) AR (a) Share capital
2012 2011
BROHE BEFT REH BETT

No. of shares HKS'000 No. of shares HKS'000
EERA Authorised
LRREREE 1T Ordinary shares of HK$1 each 800,000,000 800,000 | 800,000,000 800,000
ERTRBERA Issued and fully paid
TRRERAEE 1T Ordinary shares of HK$1 each 459,428,656 459,429 | 459,428,656 459,429

EBBFAEABREIRTE KK

B R

2R LAERE —ENR

S - A S BRERNERRBARIGRE

ERER SR -

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual

assets.
(b) HAf#E — A2 A (b) Other reserves - The Company
EftffEE
Other reserves
HERE
BABE REER EftRREE
fifse ffES  Leasehold
Bx  RGEE  Capitl Investment buildings REEH
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation Nit Retained 4%
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  Sub-total profits Total
BT MFT AT AEFR ARFR ARFR ARFR BRFR
HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS'000
RO1E1A1A At 1 January 2011 459,429 384,620 47,086 252,295 = 684,001 96612 1,240,042
FER2EYEEE Total comprehensive
income for the year = = = (11,199) 9 (11,190) 21,002 9812
RE Dividend = = = = = -7’y (1378
R11E12A318% At31 December 2011 and
W2E1A18 1 January 2012 459,429 384,620 47,086 241,096 9 672,811 103,831 1,236,071
FER2ENREE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 151,713 - 151,713 378,781 530,494
RE Dividend = = = = = = (18,377) (18,377)
R2012512531R At 31 December 2012 459,429 384,620 47,086 392,809 9 824,524 464,235 1,748,188
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(i) AT EZ
EERBESEZERE

- —REZERHEBERECRFE
Bl B8 B 2R BIE )RR i A
Bz NI DEEEERFER ©

— —REECREEREY BRERE
MAKEREERBRERRRER
#85E )(BF 4 [2005149 5% ) 5% 3 B9 —
R - Z— MEBEAFED
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BB -

(i) ZEFfAEE

EAFEEES DR REF B L E—R
P& ©

(iv) BEXFHEE
CENE AR

— 2000 F1HA1HUBIMESS G
REEBERNRMEENTER
AEERGEHKEENTHBE
E - BERIARBENRATFFE
SRR A EREEE

— HEZEHERE BEARKREN
BRARIRNBAFE BEIMKRAR
ERADNEMERBEFRFHES
B

— R E R R E
ok 55 Y 1 2 ) 4 R A ) 4 B S 22
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36 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by Sections 48B and 49H
respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(i) Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

—  Non-distributable reserve set aside by an associated
financial institution from its retained earnings in
accordance with the Financial System Act of Macao.

—  General reserve established and maintained within
equity holders’ equity of an associated financial
institution pursuant to Caijin [2005] No. 49 “Measures
on General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts for
Financial Institutions” issued by Ministry of Finance.
The general reserve was established through the
appropriation of income to cover unidentified
potential impairment losses.

(iii)  General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained earnings
and is available for general use.

(iv)  Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

— goodwill and the excess of the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of business combination and the investments in
associates prior to 1 January 2001;

—  capitalisation of retained earnings and reserves
for the purpose of increasing the share capital
and capital reserve of jointly controlled entities,
associates and their subsidiaries in previous years;

—  share of movement in reserves recorded in equity of a
jointly controlled entity for the change in the interest in
a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control.
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CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v)  Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets (less related deferred tax charge) held
by the Company, jointly controlled entities and associates.

(vi)  Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings at the
date of reclassification from owner-occupied property to
investment property.

(vii) Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities and associates into the reporting currency of the
Company.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

AEENABEREOT The Group had the following financial guarantees:
rEE
Group
2012 2011
BEFT BB F T
HKS'000 HKS'000
BAETERRBER Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
R E(R for certain purchasers 57,476 126,473

MR2012F 12 A31H Z"EE—FRWE
NREBEEREANMYENETER
NEZBERMAE TIRIT RS RS
LR o

At 31 December 2012, a subsidiary of the Group provided
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks and financial institutions to certain
purchasers of that subsidiary’s properties in Mainland
China.
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by those purchasers, that subsidiary is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interest and penalty owed by
those defaulted purchasers to the relevant banks and
financial institutions, and that subsidiary is entitled to
take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The guarantee period starts from the date of
grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends when the
property purchaser obtains the “property title certificate”
which is then pledged to the relevant banks and financial
institutions.

The Group considers that the net realisable value of
the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage principals together with the
accrued interest and penalty in case of default in payments
and therefore no provision has been made for those
guarantees in these consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Property, plant and equipment

PN | EAF
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETFT BETFT BT BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
BRNEREE Contracted but not provided for 206 625 206 205
RET A Ll B AR A The Group's share of capital
ZARSEEINHRA commitments of the jointly
THIE R 2 B controlled entities not
AEENT included above is as follows:
EEABRBHE Contracted but not provided for — 5,576
BHERREL Authorised but not contracted = 1,263
= 6,839
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39 FHERYE 39
(a) ZA&MHA

MR2012F12 A31H » ZREERKAR A
BETITHE 2 EEHEMBERARE
NZz&EREMNZOT :

LEASE COMMITMENTS
(a) Aslessee
At 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company had

future aggregate minimum lease payments payable under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

rEE PN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
BYEFrT | EEFrT| E¥Fr| EFEFr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
P 3h EE Land and buildings
EF—FNA Within one year 31 263 2,290 1,868
F_FEZFERATFAN  Inthe second to fifth year
(BIEEREMT) inclusive — 31 2,290 —
31 294 4,580 1,868
(b) HFHA (b) As lessor

M2012F12 8310 » REBRARF]
RIE AU 2 2T & i 7R R SR B UK
B &ERERMZRAT :

At 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

EH AN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
g | surr| BEFz| sETz
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKSs'000 HKS'000
P HhEE Land and buildings
F—FNA Within one year 9,672 6,294 6,152 3,972
F_EFEZERFA In the second to fifth year
(BRERMT) inclusive 25,382 5,219 9,766 5,219
FERE KRR In the sixth year and
thereafter 13,056 = — =
48,110 11,513 15,918 9,191

AEBLE BAEMECHEFHE—
FENFAE  HEHRAZEEIIEE

EME -

The lease terms for commercial properties leased out by
the Group range from one to eight years and with unfixed
rentals throughout the lease periods.
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40 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(outflow)/inflow from operations

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash

2012 2011
EBETFT BT
HKS'000 HKS'000
B35 AL A Profit before taxation 858,802 321,953
AR Adjustments for:
FEREREH B EE Share of results of jointly controlled entities (390,575) (268,565)
i NI Share of results of associates (38,079) (1,649)
HE—RKHERZEHES Gain on partial disposal of interest in a
B AR jointly controlled entity (108,135) —
—RXEETHE RS Gain on dilution of interest in a
wEEN W = jointly controlled entity (284,928) —
—REE AR Gain on dilution of interest in an
WEEER W associate (46,373) —
REMEEHATE Fair value gains on revaluation of
Wz investment properties (13,737) (27,840)
e Depreciation 1,116 1,333
HEAHEEEHEE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
e financial assets (10,682) —
HEREMEN = Gain on disposal of investment properties — (157)
IRbe W SOR BB 1B Impairment loss on insurance receivable 28 —
HEME - HERREE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
&1 equipment 18 14
SRAT1E TR F B U Interest income from bank deposits (3,377) (2,635)
MEZH Interest expenses 12,487 7,221
BE X (Weas) /BB Net exchange (gains)/losses (480) 1,821
MEECZBER: Changes in working capital:
BRI EMER D Decrease in completed properties held for sale 27,464 128,388
S RP YL Increase in properties under development
for sale — (46,889)
EEBS AR D Decrease in deferred acquisition costs 1,826 3,119
R UGB D Decrease in insurance receivable 782 78
BIRMRE ELL N Increase in reinsurance assets (1,253) (2,208)
HibERBRZUR D,/ Decrease/(increase) in other debtors
(&) 320 (1,361)
ART 2R Decrease in prepaid taxes 303 2,241
HtnFEN R R ZE (Increase)/decrease in other prepayment
(1), w A and deposits (356) 1,897
BRAFEEREBERYIEN (Increase)/decrease in financial assets at
SRVEEGEM) A fair value through profit or loss (4,543) 4,005
RERA #0380,/ O 4>) Increase/(decrease) in insurance contracts 2,485 (8,622)
TRBg FEAT I N Increase in insurance payable 358 1,329
Hin SRR A (Decrease)/increase in other creditors
BRCRD), /12m and accruals (6,710) 27,954
MEHELRPE® Decrease in customer deposits from
A sale of properties (5,010) (42,918)
mEESRL (KL, Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operations
MA (8,249) 98,509
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BN AER S M MR BBy WEIN
AEBAELETEBBENET I EKRE

By

(a)

(b)

(d)
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related party
transactions which were carried out in the normal course
of the Group's business are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

At 31 December 2012, the Group and the Company
had deposits with XIB Group, an associate of the
Company, totaling HK$92.95 million (2011: HK$95.95
million) and HK$16.5 million (2011: HK$20.06 million)
respectively. The deposits carry interest at normal
commercial rates and have generated interest
income of HK$2.1 million (2011: HK$1.45 million) and
HK$0.33 million (2011: HK$0.16 million) to the Group
and the Company during the year.

Gross insurance premium less commission paid to
totaling HK$5.1 million (2011: HK$5.07 million) was
derived from business referred to a subsidiary of
the Group by an associate during the year. Those
insurance policies underwritten by the Group were
contracted at prices and terms not less favourable
than those contracted with other third party
customers of the Group.

In 2011, the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement for lease of office space in Mainland China
with a company as to 30% equity interest owned
by FIDG, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The term for the tenancy agreement is three years
commencing from June 2011 and the monthly rental
is RMB57,024. A rental income of approximately
RMBO0.68 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.84 million) (2011: approximately RMB0.29
million, equivalent to approximately HK$0.35 million)
was received by the Company during the year.

An amount of HK$1.88 million (2011: HK$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine Company Limited
("Vigour Fine”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for the provision of certain management
services which include the provision of directors to
the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to a
management agreement.
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(e)

In January 2011, the Group drew down a short-
term advance of RMB36.89 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$43.58 million) from FIDG, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. The short-
term advance was unsecured, borne interest at
Renminbi lending rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China and had been fully repaid in January
2011. The Group paid interest of approximately
RMBO0.12 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.14 million) to FIDG in 2011.

Key management personnel

The senior executives’ emolument for the year ended
31 December 2012 and 2011 are detailed as follows:

2012 2011

BT T BT T

HKs'000 HKS'000

ke Directors' fees 1,190 1,162
HE BEEREM Salaries, housing and other allowances,

2EE - KRB &= and benefits in kind 7,769 7,363

RIREHFTEI R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 198 231

Re Bonus 4,380 4,380

13,537 13,136
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42

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, a summary of significant
events after the reporting period are disclosed as follows:

(a)

On 31 January 2013, XIB has completed the issuance
of new shares to third parties to further enlarge
its share capital (“Third Share Issue”), resulting in
the dilution of the Company’s shareholding in XIB
from approximately 18.7739% to approximately
16.9333%. It is estimated that the Group may record
a gain on dilution of approximately HK$40 million
in the financial year ending on 31 December 2013
based on the consolidated financial information of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
consolidated financial information of XIB prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The Company has evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its approximately
16.9333% shareholding in XIB upon completion
of the Third Share Issue and considered that the
Company will continue to have the ability to exercise
significant influence over the financial and operating
policy decisions of XIB. Accordingly, the Company
considers that XIB will continue to be classified as
an associate of the Company and the Company'’s
interest in XIB will continue to be accounted for
using equity method in accordance with the HKFRSs.

On 14 January 2013, Min Xin Properties Limited
entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement for the sale of the Equity Interest to
Citichamp (Note 29), an independent third party at a
cash consideration of RMB227,884,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$283,442,000).
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

According to the sale and purchase agreement,
Citichamp has paid the Consideration 1 of
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$124,380,000) into the Escrow Account on 21
January 2013.

The Company and Minxin Suzhou entered into an
agreement (“Loan Agreement”) on 14 January 2013,
the outstanding advance due to the Company (Note
29) is carried forward as shareholder loan, which shall
carry an interest of (i) 4% per annum from the date of
the Loan Agreement to the date on which the Equity
Interest is transferred to Citichamp and (ii) 8% per
annum from the date immediately after the Equity
Interest is transferred to Citichamp until 30 June
2014. The outstanding loan and all interests accrued
thereon shall be repaid in full on 30 June 2014.
Citichamp has agreed to guarantee the payment of
the outstanding loan and interests accrued thereon.
The term of such guarantee shall commence from
the date on which the Equity Interest is transferred to
Citichamp and shall expire on 30 June 2016.

The shareholders of the Company have approved the
sale and purchase agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 28 February 2013.

Upon completion of the Disposal, the Group expects
to record an estimated one-off gain of approximately
HK$117 million for the financial year ending on 31
December 2013, which is calculated based on the
Consideration, the carrying value and the release
of exchange translation reserve attributable to the
Equity Interest as reflected in these consolidated
financial statements, taking into account estimated
tax payable (which is subject to final determination
by the relevant tax authority in Mainland China) and
other expenses payable in relation to the Disposal.
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(a) FFAEHE

Details of the Group’s principal property interests as at 31 December
2012 are as follows:

(a) Held for investments

Eie-1. ] Horg
ik Eihgs AER
ERE Group's  Approximate BRA%
Lease attributable gross floor Existing
g Location expiry interest area use
A% Fr¥sq ft
1 NERAERE847-865% Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 14,841 [EES
KEREH T RO 75 R8H store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
BB EE 18R the whole of 1t and 2nd floors
2B2E Winfield Building
847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong
2 BEARLNEEREEND 22/F and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza 2044 100 41,288 %
ARS8 RRRES 2 E 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Commercial
k3 The People’s Republic of China
3 PEARAMEREREEMT Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and 204 100 5201 Bx
MRS RERER T 44 to #48, Basement Level 3 Commercial
“EBURE4E8 ] Worldwide Plaza
#42E 448 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
The People’s Republic of China
(b) EIEMMEHEYE (b) Completed properties held for sale
ERELEN
Baeg
Z:3-1 N % f 3 ¢ BER
R ik JEfb s @ER  Approximate
K& ERE Group's Approximate  grossfloor  BEAR
Stage of Lease attributable  gross floor area held Existing
g Location completion expiry interest area by the Group use
A% Frksgm  Frksqm.
1 EfEEE Famous Vila ExI 2077 100 79922 58,048 e
hEAREMELHE Dabaidang Park West Completed Residential

FNmRIE Hong Xi Road North

HANIER Export Processing Zone East
BERL Suzhou New District
ARG EESH Suzhou, Jiangsu

The People’s Republic of China
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17th Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive
Central, Hong Kong

EARAPERARKSERERE17IE
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